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MINUTES of a meeting of the JOINT AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE
COMMITTEE held at the Derbyshire Police Headquarters, Butterley Hall, Ripley
on 17 December 2013
PRESENT
Miss K Alcock (in the Chair)
Mr M Carrington, Mr S Cook, Ms S Hart
Apology received from Mr A Salt.
OPCC Present: Mrs H Boffy, Mrs L Kelly,
ACPO Present: Mr T Neaves
Internal Audit: Mr P Green, Ms A Ward
External Audit: Mr J Cornett, Ms T Enticott

27/13

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
27.1 No declarations of interest were declared.
RESOLVED:
1.
To note that no members declared any personal or prejudicial
interests.

28/13

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JARAC HELD ON 26
SEPTEMBER 2013
28.1 Minute 19.6. Members queried whether the possibility of using one
Risk Register for both the Commissioner and the Chief Constable
had been progressed. The Orchid System is designed for large
organisations with multiple risk owners, as the OPCC is a small
organisation with limited risk owners there was some doubt as to
whether this will be appropriate for the OPCC. It was noted that Mrs
Boffy attends the Risk Management Board, thereby ensuring that
any risks pertinent to the OPCC can be transferred to the PCC Risk
Register.
28.2 Minute 19.7. Members had attended the Risk and Threat Seminar
and thanks were extended for the invite to this event which helped
members of the JARAC embed a deeper knowledge and
understanding of how risk is managed.
28.3 Minute 23.4. It was noted that the Statement of Accounts was
published on the OPCC and Constabulary websites by the due date
of 30 September 2013.
1
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28.4 It was agreed that the draft minutes of the meeting be prepared and
distributed to members of the JARAC within 10 days of the meeting.
28.5 So that members of the JARAC can be kept abreast of the decisions
made by the Commissioner, it was agreed that members receive an
email with a link to the Strategic Governance Board agenda and
reports prior to the meeting of the Board. A note of the SGB meeting
dates 2014 will be sent to members under separate cover.
28.6 The minutes of the meeting of the JARAC held on 26 September
2013 were available for members to confirm.
RESOLVED:
1.
That the Minutes of the meeting of the JARAC held on 26 September
2013 be confirmed by the Committee
29/13

HMIC INSPECTION ACTIVITY
29.1 The report provides information to the committee on HMIC
inspection activity. It was noted that all activity is related to
operational policing issues and the action plans in responding to
recommendations are managed through Corporate Development.
29.2 Through discussion it was acknowledged that the Committee need
reassurance that a process is in place to implement any
recommendations, in addition, any significant issues are transferred
to the risk register. To reflect this discussion it was agreed that
Officer Recommendation 1 be amended to “ the JARAC receives the
report to gain direct assurance that there is a process in place for
the Constabulary to implement HMIC recommendations”.
29.3 To ensure the committee are fully aware of the process it was
agreed that the next inspection report detail the process and an
additional recommendation be added to reflect this (officer
recommendation 2).
29.4 Additionally, it was agreed that a HMIC Inspection Report be
reported to the committee just once per year and future reports
should provide a briefer overview of activity and include; the total
number of inspections and the total number of issues transferred to
the risk register during the period in question.
RESOLVED:
1.
The report was received to gain direct assurance that there is a
process in place for the Constabulary to implement HMIC
recommendations.
2
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2.

30/13

To receive a report for the next meeting of the JARAC on the
process of implementing HMIC recommendations.
FORCE RISK MANAGEMENT

30.1 To provide assurance that risk is being managed efficiently and
effectively, Ms S Hart (Committee member) had attended the most
recent meeting of the Risk Management Board in December 2013,
detailed in minute 31/13 below.
30.2 Additionally, to provide further assurance, it was noted that members
had received the Risk Strategy, the Internal Audit report on risk and
had also attended the Strategic Risk Seminar.
30.3 It was suggested that when planning the meetings for 2014, these
meetings be co-ordinated to coincide with major Constabulary
meetings and each meeting then be tailored around specific themes,
it was proposed that the September meeting focus on Risk.
30.4 Members of the Committee required some assurance that running
two separate risk registers for the OPCC and the Constabulary
worked well. Members were reminded that the OPCC and the
Constabulary are separate organisations each with a different focus
of either operational delivery or oversight. It therefore remained valid
to run two separate registers. It was also recognised that there was
a difference in scale between the two organisations. The Orchid
process is relevant to the Constabulary, with a large number of risks
owners. It may be less relevant for the OPCC with a much smaller
number of risk owners.
30.5 The PCC’s Risk Register will be presented to the committee in
September 2014 to provide reassurance that risk is managed
effectively within the OPCC. Mrs Boffy will contact other PCC
Offices already using the Orchid System to examine the feasibility of
using this within Derbyshire.
30.6 The committee agreed to amend the recommendation as follows:
“The JARAC receives the report to gain significant and direct
assurance that this area of business is being managed efficiently
and effectively.”
RESOLVED
1.
The report was received and significant and direct assurance was
taken that this area of business is being managed efficiently and
effectively.
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31/13

REPORT ON ATTENDANCE AT THE FORCE STRATEGIC RISK
MANAGEMENT BOARD
31.1 Ms S Hart provided verbal feedback to committee members following
her attendance at the Force Strategic Risk Management Board.
31.2 Ms Hart explained the process of how the Force examine and
manage risk and from this observational role was able to provide
significant assurance to committee members that risk is managed
effectively and efficiently.
RESOLVED:
1.
Assurance was taken from the verbal feedback provided by Ms S
Hart that the area of Risk is being managed efficiently and effectively
by the Constabulary.

32/13

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
32.1 The External Auditor, Mr J Cornett presented the External Audit
Progress Report and requested that the committee note progress to
date and to note that there have been no significant audit findings to
date, an additional officer recommendation was agreed to reflect this
(3).
32.2 Mr Cornett highlighted the risk noted on page 2, as there is still no
clear guidance on the expected format and content of financial
statements for police bodies. To complicate this further the stage 2
transfers may need to be accounted for in the 2013/14 accounts,
External Audit are endeavouring to get more guidance and
clarification on this.
32.3 Attached for information and consideration at Appendix B was the
Value for Money profiles. It was agreed that this will form the focus
for the meeting of the committee in March
RESOLVED:
1.
To receive the report.
2.
To inform assurance responsibilities, it was agreed to focus on Value
for Money at the meeting of the JARAC in March 2014.
3.
To note that there have been no significant audit findings to date.

33/13

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER
33.1 The External Auditor presented the report highlighting on page 2, the
unqualified opinion for the financial statements of each of the PCC
and CC on 30 September 2013.

4
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33.2 The Annual Audit Letter will be published on the Commissioner’s
website.
33.3 In considering the schedule of meetings 2014, it was noted that the
meeting usually scheduled for June may need to be delayed until
early July so that the Committee can examine the accounts.
RESOLVED:
1.
To receive the Annual Audit Letter for 2012/13 and take assurance
that once again the arrangements by Derbyshire Police for financial
reporting, value for money and external reporting were satisfactory.
34/13

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
34.1 The Internal Audit Charter details how internal audit carry out their
work and full details were contained within the copy of the charter
attached at Appendix A to the report.
34.2 Within the reporting section of the Charter members noted that
progress reports will be presented at every meeting of the
committee; noting that there may be additional ‘ad hoc’ meetings,
members requested this be re-worded as follows; “These will be
presented at every routine Joint Audit, Risk and Assurance
Committee.”
34.3 Paragraph 6.1 bullet 3 be amended as follows; “…Resources will be
agreed with Joint Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee each
year …”
34.4 The Charter will be updated to reflect the amendments before being
signed by the Committee Chair.
RESOLVED:
1.
The Internal Audit Charter was received and the auditors questioned
to satisfy the committee as to the contents.
2.
The Chair of the JARAC sign the amended Internal Audit Charter,
when received.

35/13

INTERNAL AUDIT : PROGRESS REPORT
35.1 Internal Audit presented the progress report attached at Appendix A.
The following was highlighted and discussed;
35.2 Following a planning meeting on 4 December (page 2) a number of
changes had been agreed, which were highlighted to the committee.
35.3 Members noted three low priority recommendations relating to Fleet
Management (page 4) to be implemented between March 2014 and
5
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July 2014. Members queried whether there was any delay in the
implementation of these recommendations, which were discussed,
members suggested including some commentary on timings and/or
delays for future reports. Internal Audit were not overly concerned
by the delay in implementing these low priority recommendations
and assured the committee that these would be implemented as part
of the Priority Based Budgeting exercise that is being rolled out
across the Constabulary.
RESOLVED:
1.
The Committee takes assurance that the internal audit plan
addresses relevant matters and is being delivered as expected.
36/13

AUDIT REPORT: FINANCIAL GOVERNANCE REPORT
36.1 The internal audit report on Governance: Financial Governance was
attached at Appendix A. It was emphasised that this is a key
document for the Committee to consider and will be a key part of its
assurance framework. There were no recommendations as a result
of the audit, but two items were noted; an Information Sharing
Protocol be developed and the scheme of delegation and consent
governance be reviewed in readiness for a Stage 2 transfer.
RESOLVED:
1.
Assurance was taken that the requirements of the Financial
Management Code of Practice for the Police Service of England and
Wales is being addressed.
2.
To note that an Information Sharing Protocol will be developed and
the scheme of delegation and consent governance will be reviewed
in readiness for Stage 2 transfer. Each policy will be reported to the
Committee in due course.

37/13

AUDIT REPORT:
PREVENTION

COMMISSIONER GRANT SCHEME – CRIME

37.1 The Commissioner’s Crime Prevention Grant Scheme was evaluated
to assess the adequacy of risk management and controls. The full
report was attached at Appendix A.
37.2 The report stated that the Commissioner can take substantial
assurance that the control upon which the organisation relies to
manage this risk is suitably designed, consistently applied and
effective. The four low priority recommendations were noted.
RESOVLED:
1.
Assurance was taken as to the design and application of the control
framework.
6
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2.

38/13

To note that the four low priority matters identified in the action plan
relating to the design of the control framework have been accepted
by management and will be addressed by March 2014.
AUDIT REPORT:
COLLABORATION
FINANCIAL FRAMEWORK

GOVERNANCE

&

38.1 The Internal Audit Report: Collaboration Governance and Financial
Framework had been updated and the updated version was
circulated at the meeting (filed with the minutes and updated on the
Commissioner’s website). The amended version showed a change
to reference 6 page 7 – the recommendation had not been accepted
and management comment was provided.
RESOLVED:
1.
Assurance was taken as to the design and application of the control
framework.
2.
To note the 5 medium and 3 low priority matters identified in the
action plan relating to the design of the control framework have been
accepted by management and will be addressed according to the
plan timescale.
39/13

FOLLOW
UP
OF
RECOMMENDATIONS

PREVIOUS

INTERNAL

AUDIT

39.1 The review focussed on the implementation of recommendations for
actions arising from 8 previous internal audit reports. The full report
was attached at Appendix A.
39.2 The report highlighted good progress in implementing actions
agreed to address internal audit recommendations and actions
relating to Fleet Management that are outstanding will be addressed
as part of the Priority Based Budgeting exercise over the next 6 – 8
months.
39.3 To be able to monitor slippage, members suggested adding an
additional column at Appendix A to show whether recommendations
were implemented within the agreed timeframe. Internal Audit
provided reassurance that this is not an area of concern within the
Derbyshire, however, the possibility of adding an extra column for
future reports will be examined.
RESOLVED:
1.
To take assurance from the follow up report that all but 3 of the
previous internal audit recommendations have been implemented
and that those outstanding have a planned action to deliver.
40/13

EXTENSION OF APPOINTMENT OF INTERNAL AUDITORS TO
7
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MARCH 2015
40.1 The Treasurer intends to authorise a contract with the current
Internal Audit providers for a 12 month extension to March 2015, as
detailed within the report.
RESOLVED:
1.
To note the action taken by the Treasurer in securing from a
framework agreement, a draw down 12 month extension from April
2014 to March 2015 to the internal audit contract to align the regional
forces and Commissioners’ for joint market testing for April 2015.
41/13

NCRS AND NSIR COMPLIANCE REPORT
41.1 The reports provide results on two key audits; National Crime
Recording Standards (NCRS) and National Standards of Incident
Recording (NSIR). The reports showed that compliance in most
areas is above the 80% threshold, where a levels falls below this
threshold an action is implemented to ensure better compliance in
this area.
41.2 The reports provided assurance to members that a process is in
place to monitor compliance of crime and incident recording. It was
agreed that for the future, a report be presented once per year to
highlight trends in compliance levels and to also provide a statement
to highlight any concerns.
RESOLVED:
1.
To gain direct assurance that this area of business is being
managed efficiently and effectively.

8

AGENDA ITEM 4
JOINT, AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 MARCH 2014

JOINT AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
REVIEW OF ACTIONS
Agenda Report Title and Action Required
Item
Meeting of the JARAC 17 December 2013
3

4A

5A

Responsible Progress
Officer

Minutes of the meeting of the JARAC held on 26 September 2013
Draft Minutes of the JARAC to be circulated to all Committee members
within 10 days of the meeting.

Liz Kelly

Actioned

Members receive an email with a link to the Strategic Governance Board
agenda and reports prior to the meeting of the Board.

Liz Kelly

Actioned (added

A note of SGB meeting dates to be sent to members under separate cover.

Liz Kelly

Actioned.

A report be presented to the Committee in March to explain the process of
implementing HMIC recommendations.

Terry
Neaves

On this agenda.

To be reported to the Committee once per year and future reports should
provide a briefer overview of activity and include; the total number of
inspections and the total number of issues transferred to the risk register
during the period in question.

Terry
Neaves

December 2014

Helen Boffy

Themes agreed
– detailed in

to Distribution list).

HMIC Inspection Activity

Force Risk Management
The 2014 JARAC meetings be co-ordinated to coincide with major
Constabulary meetings and each meeting be tailored around specific

-1-
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themes.

6A

8B

agenda item
11A

Mrs Boffy to present the PCC’s Risk Register to the committee in
September 2014.

Helen Boffy

September
2014

Mrs Boffy to contact other PCC Offices already using the Orchid System to
examine the feasibility of using this within Derbyshire and feed back to the
Committee.

Helen Boffy

By September
2014

Value for Money Profiles to form the focus for the March 2014 Committee
meeting.

Helen Boffy

On this agenda.

Further clarification needed as to whether Stage 2 transfers should be
accounted for in the 2013/14 accounts.

External
Audit

Clarification at
the meeting that
the Stage 2
Transfer takes
effect on 1 April
2014.

External Audit Progress report

Internal Audit Progress Report
Internal Audit to examine the possibility of adding some commentary on
timings and/or delays for future reports.

8C

Internal Audit Clarification
from Internal
Audit awaited.

Audit Report: Financial Governance Report
An Information Sharing Protocol will be developed and the scheme of
delegation and consent governance will be reviewed in readiness for Stage

-2-

Helen Boffy

In hand.
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2 Transfer. Each policy will be reported to the committee in due course.
10A

NCRS and NSIR Compliance Report
A report be presented just once per year (to be included in the annual
reporting cycle) to highlight trends in compliance levels and to also provide
a statement to highlight any concerns.

-3-

Terry
Neaves

September
2014

Section B
Part I For Publication
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JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 MARCH 2014
REPORT OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE

5A:

HMIC INSPECTION ACTIVITY

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To inform Committee members on the process that the Constabulary takes in
relation to Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) inspection
activity recommendations.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

1.2

Members will be aware that a series of HMIC inspections occur throughout
the year and are carried out to measure the efficiency and effectiveness of the
Force.

1.3

The Force is engaged with HMIC pre, during and post inspection activity to
ensure it continues to respond to and manage both the operational and
business risks that it faces.

1.4

When an inspection takes place and there are recommendations made by the
HMIC, then the relevant business lead is alerted and where applicable, action
plans created. Any significant risks are transferred to the risk register.
Corporate Services maintain the overview of such plans.

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To determine if the Committee can gain direct assurance that there is a
process in place, to implement where relevant, HMIC recommendations.

4.

IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Legal/Personnel and Environmental Considerations
HMIC operates under a legal framework set out within the Police Act 1996
and is the primary body that informs parliament and the public about the state
of policing in the UK. Chief Officers and the Police and Crime Commissioner
are obligated to plan policing to meet nationally established standards. The
Home Secretary has reserved powers to deal with persistently underperforming forces.

4.2

Financial Considerations

1
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Recommendations from any inspection activity can carry financial
considerations. Internal inspections have regard to issues of efficiency,
effectiveness and economy.
All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be
contained within the report
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of
the author
LOW – no narrative required

Crime & Disorder
Environmental
Equality & Diversity
Financial
Health & Safety
Human Rights
Legal
Personnel
Contact details
in the event
of enquiries

LOW
x
x
x

MEDIUM

HIGH

x
x
x
x
x

Name: Chief Superintendent Sunita Gamblin
External telephone number: 0300 122 4196
Email address: sgbenquiries@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
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Part I –
For Publication

JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMIITTEE
13 MARCH 2014
REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR
7A:

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To receive a progress report from the external auditors on their work to date
this during this financial year.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS
Progress report

2.1

As part of the management of the external audit process, a progress report is
provided to each meeting of the JARAC. Attached at APPENDIX A to this
report is the latest progress report for March 2014.

2.2

2.3

The report headlines are
•

Scope and timing of the audit work

•

potential risks for the 2013/14 audit plan

•

potential accounts risks

•

other accounts issues

•

potential VFM risks

The JARAC is asked to note progress to date, that there have been no
significant audit findings to date and that CIPFA will be issuing mandatory
guidance on the format of financial statements by the end of March ’14.

3.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Committee receives the report and
i.

Notes the progress to date

ii.

Notes that there have been no significant audit findings to date
1
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iii.

Notes that CIPFA will be issuing guidance on the format of the
financial statements by the end of March 2014, and that compliance
with the guidance will be mandatory.

IMPLICATIONS
All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained
within the report
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the
author
LOW – no narrative required

LOW
Crime & Disorder

X

Environmental

X

Equality & Diversity

X

Financial

X

Health & Safety

X

Human Rights

X

Legal

X

Personnel

X

MEDIUM

HIGH

Contact details

Name: Helen Boffy

in the event

External telephone number: 0300 122 6005

of enquiries

Email address: Helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A. External Audit Progress Report march 2014
2
S:\HQ\OPCC\JARAC\2014\2014-03-13\Agenda Item 7A External Audit Progress Report 130314 fv.doc

AGENDA ITEM 7A
JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 MARCH 2014

3
S:\HQ\OPCC\JARAC\2014\2014-03-13\Agenda Item 7A External Audit Progress Report 130314 fv.doc

Joint Audit, Risk
and Assurance
Committee
Progress Report

Police and Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire and The Chief Constable of
Derbyshire
13 March 2014
Public Sector Audit

Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and The Chief Constable of
Derbyshire

Joint Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee Progress Report
Headlines
Introduction and
background

This progress report provides a high level summary of the work we plan to undertake for the
2013/14 audit year, together with a high level assessment of the risks that we have
considered as part of this initial planning process.
Members of the JARAC will be aware that there are still uncertainties surrounding the
accounting arrangements for the Stage 2 transfer, together with ongoing discussion in
relation to the format of the 2013/14 accounts.
CIPFA have written to all PCC Treasurers and Force Finance Directors confirming that they
will produce a LAAP bulletin in March, providing definitive guidance on the form and content
of the financial statements. Therefore it is appropriate for us not to issue our detailed Audit
Plan until this guidance has been published. We will present our detailed Audit Plan
2013/14 to the JARAC at its meeting in July 2014.

Scope of our audit

Our audit work is governed by:
■

Audit Commission Act 1998;

■ Audit Commission Code of Audit Practice; and
■ International Standards on Auditing.
We provide:
■ An opinion on the financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the
Chief Constable; and
■ A value for money conclusion.
The scope of our work is clarified further in the Audit Commission’s ‘Statement of roles and
responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies’.
Further information in relation to the scope of our work to support the value for money
conclusion is available on the Audit Commission’s website at http://www.auditcommission.gov.uk/technicaldirectory/vfm1314/
Proposed timing of
audit work

The timing of our audit work follows a similar pattern to 2012/13.
■ Interim audit visit – review financial systems, understand financial performance to date,
identify key risks for the audit of the financial statements. This visit took place in
February. There are no significant issues arising at this stage. We will revisit our work
once the CIPFA LAAP bulletin is issued, to assess the need for any further audit work
prior to the main final accounts visit.
■ Final accounts visit - audit of the financial statements and the Annual Governance
Statement. We have agreed to take a phased approach to this visit. The main visit will
start at the end of July, and will be followed by a shorter ‘mop up’ visit in September, to
allow time for any late changes or guidance to be actioned. Our work will be complete
before 30 September 2014, in line with statutory deadlines.
■ The Internal Audit review of the PCC and CC approach to budgeting is expected to
provide a key piece of evidence to support our value for money conclusion. Once this
work is complete, we will commence our review of your arrangements.
We will continue our ongoing communication with the finance team during the year to
ensure early resolution of any technical issues raised. We will provide feedback to the Panel
on any potential risk areas arising during year.

Potential risks for the
2013/14 Audit Plan

At this stage, we have highlighted the following potential risk areas for the Audit Plan:
■ Format, content and presentation of the financial statements;
■ Value for money conclusion.
Details are set out on the following page.

© 2013 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.
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Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and The Chief Constable of
Derbyshire

Joint Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee Progress Report
Headlines
Potential
accounts
risks

Members of the JARAC will recall that in last year’s audit plan, we highlighted the format,
content and presentation of the financial statements as a potential risk. The key challenge
faced by the PCC and CC in the accounts production was the format of the accounts, as the
Code guidance had not been sufficiently detailed to provide a full framework on which to
base the two sets of financial statements and the group financial statements. The PCC and
CC made good progress in compiling the financial statements to ensure that they complied
with existing code requirements, available guidance and were prepared within the statutory
timescales.
There is still no clear guidance on the expected format and content of financial statements
for police bodies.
We will continue to work with your finance staff to discuss this issue on an ongoing basis.

Other
accounts
issues

As part of our audit responsibilities, we are required to make enquiries of those charged
with governance, usually the Audit Committee equivalent, in your case the JARAC. We are
required to seek responses to three questions:
■ How do those charged with governance provide effective oversight of the entity’s
programs and controls to prevent, detect and deter fraud, including oversight over
internal controls management has established to mitigate fraud risks?
■ What are your views about fraud risks at the entity?
■ Are you aware of or have you identified any instances of actual, suspected, or alleged
fraud, including misconduct or unethical behaviour related to financial reporting or
misappropriation of assets? If so, have the instances been appropriately addressed and
how have they been addressed?
We have written to the Chair of the JARAC to seek a formal response to each of these
questions, and have requested a response by 30 April 2014.

Potential value for
money risks

For the year ending 31 March 2014, the auditors of PCCs and CCs are required to give their
statutory conclusion on arrangements to secure value for money based on the two criteria
specified by the Audit Commission.
This is a change from 2012/13, when the criteria were disapplied for PCCs and CCs outside
London. This was to reflect the transition to new governance arrangements introduced by
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. 2013/14 will be the first year that we
will apply the specified criteria to what are still relatively new organisations. This will be a
common risk for all police bodies.
The specified criteria are:
■ The organisation has proper arrangements in place for securing financial resilience. The
organisation has robust systems and processes to manage financial risks and
opportunities effectively, and to secure a stable financial position that enables it to
continue to operate for the foreseeable future.
■ The organisation has proper arrangements for challenging how it secures economy ,
efficiency and effectiveness. The organisation is prioritising its resources within tighter
budgets, for example by achieving cost reductions and by improving efficiency and
productivity.

© 2013 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.
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Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and The Chief Constable of
Derbyshire

Joint Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee Progress Report
Headlines
Actions

The Joint Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee asked to:
■ Note progress to date;
■ Note that there have been no significant audit findings to date;
■ Note that CIPFA will be issuing guidance on the format of the financial statements by the
end of March 2014, and that compliance with the guidance will be mandatory.

Contacts

The contacts in relation to our audit are:
John Cornett
Director
0116 256 6064
John.Cornett@KPMG.co.uk

Trudy Enticott
Manager
0115 945 478
Trudy.Enticott@KPMG.co.uk

© 2013 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.
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JOINT AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 MARCH 2014
JOINT REPORT OF THE TREASURER AND THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

8A:

STRATEGY FOR INTERNAL AUDIT 2014/15: INTERNAL AUDIT

ASSIGNMENTS

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To review and advise on and the annual internal audit plan for 2014/15,
ensuring that this :
•

is consistent with professional standards;

•

meets the audit needs of PCC and Chief Constable; and

•

provides the JARAC with adequate coverage for the purpose of obtaining
appropriate levels of assurance over the adequacy of the risk
management, governance and internal control environment of both the
PCC and Chief Constable.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

2.1

The Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act introduced in November 2012
the legal concept of 2 corporations sole for the Police and Crime
Commissioner and the Chief Constable with two Annual Governance
Statements to support the relevant statements of accounts and the group
accounts.

2.2

As part of a robust risk management process, internal controls are reviews in
several ways; one such assurance is provided by the work of the internal audit
function. Our internal audit is provided by Baker Tilly as part of a regional
contract.

2.3

Given that the systems and process for both corporations sole are aligned, it
has been agreed, in consultation with both internal and external auditors, that
there will be one common audit strategy addressing all internal control review
requirements.
1
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2.4

Each year an annual audit plan is compiled which the JARAC will review and
approve. It is an important feature of the governance function that this
Committee, with the advice of the Treasurer and the Director of Finance, and
on this occasion with the comments of the Chief Executive, can influence and
direct those areas of review which it thinks are appropriate.

2.5

The work of External Audit is dependent to a certain extent on the assurances
provided by internal audit, especially on the key financial controls in place in
the organisations. This avoids duplication of cost and effort.

2.6

Attached at APPENDIX A to this report is the Plan for Internal Audit
Assignments for 2014/2015. The strategy covers
• The purpose and responsibilities of Internal Audit
• The development of the strategy
• Internal audit resources and fees

2.7

The JARAC is required to consider
• Does the detailed internal audit plan for the coming financial year (see
Appendix A) reflect the areas that the Committee believes should be covered
as priority?
• Does the audit strategy include all those areas that the Committee would
expect to be subject to internal audit coverage for both the Chief Constable
and the Police and Crime Commissioner, in terms not only of professional
responsibilities but as well as covering areas of concern flagged by
management?
• Is the level of audit resource accepted by the Committee and agreed as
appropriate, given the level of assurance required?
• The detailed audit plan at Appendix A.

2.8

Members are requested to consider the proposals and to make any changes
they think are appropriate before recommending the audit plan for 2014/2015
to the Chief Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner for their
respective approval.

2
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2.9

From time to time, it may be appropriate to amend the audit plan or to
commission work within the plan from the pooled resource/contingency
allocation. Where this might need to be actioned outside the cycle of JARAC
meetings, the Treasurer or the Director of Finance will make minor changes to
the audit plan. Changes will be reported through the audit update.

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

i.

To review and make comments on the adequacy of the proposed Strategy for
Internal Audit 2014/2015

ii.

To recommend, subject to any amendments, the final plan to the Chief
Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner for their respective
approvals.

4.

IMPLICATIONS

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained
within the report
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the
author
LOW – no narrative required

LOW
Crime & Disorder

√

Environmental

√

Equality & Diversity

√
√

Financial
Health & Safety

√

Human Rights

√
√

Legal
Personnel

MEDIUM

√

3
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Contact details

Name: Helen Boffy

in the event

External telephone number: 01773 733779

of enquiries

Email address: helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None
ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A. Internal Audit Plan 2014/15
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Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire
Constabulary
Plan for Internal Assignments for 2014/2015
Presented at the Joint Audit & Risk Committee meeting of: 13th March 2014
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1

Introduction
This document sets out a plan of internal audit assignments for Police & Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire and Derbyshire Constabulary for the 2014/15 year. This plan has been agreed by
management, based on the organisation’s assurance framework, and their view of priorities for
coverage for the coming year.

2

Internal Audit Coverage

2.1

Issues Influencing Internal Audit Coverage
In agreeing the plan of assignments we have met with:
• Chief Executive - OPCC
• Treasurer – OPCC
• Director of Finance - Constabulary
• Head of Strategic Finance - Constabulary
The key areas are summarised below:
Key Areas discussed with Management and their impact on the 2014/2015 plan
Value For Money – Discussions took place around this and it was considered useful to
potentially focus on a follow up of the Priority Based Budgeting approach that was introduced
during 2013/14 and also to follow up on any key messages or recommendations coming out
of the HMIC work around Valuing the Police
ICT – Although not discussed specifically as part of the meeting, audit met separately with the
Head of IT and it was determined that an allocation of Mobile Devices would be useful for
inclusion, given the in-house project that is in progress during the year. We will work closely
with IT to determine the most appropriate timing for this work to take place
Data Quality – It is useful to include an independent review of data quality, although we are
mindful of the HMIC planned work around crime reporting and data. It was considered useful
to include an allocation around crime types and specifically the systems in place that record
crime types, as these are being replaced by the Constabulary. It seems appropriate to
provide assurance over these systems, prior to any related review by HMIC

The plan is set out at Appendix A.
As well as assignments focused on specific areas, the plan includes:
• a follow-up allocation, which will be utilised to test the degree of implementation achieved in
relation to recommendations agreed by management during the prior and current financial year
and will serve to inform the adequacy of the organisation’s own recommendation tracking process;
and
• an audit management allocation, used at Partner and Manager level for quality control, liaison and
for preparation for and attendance at Joint Audit & Risk Committee.

Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Constabulary | 2

3

Internal Audit Resources

3.1

Your Internal Audit Team
Your internal audit team is led by Patrick Green.
Your Client Manager is Angela Ward.

3.2

Internal Audit Fees
The fee for your internal audit service for 2014/15 is £36,628.
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Appendix A:

Plan of Internal Audit Assignments 2014/15

Assignment

Rationale / high level
scope

Audit
Approach

Audit
Sponsor

Proposed
Timing

Proposed
Joint Audit
& Risk
Committee

Governance &
Delivery of
Business Plan

Review of the Governance
and Delivery of the Business
Plan including the processes
for monitoring and reporting
of the Plan

Advisory

OPCC

July 2014

September
2014

Value For
Money

The specific scope will be
determined nearer the time,
although it is likely to include
a follow up of the Priority
Based Budgeting audit that
was completed during
2013/14 and potentially a
review to follow up any
recommendations made by
HMIC around their work on
valuing the police

Assurance

OPCC &
Force

December
2014

March 2015

Data Quality

To provide some assurances
over the validity of data being
presented and reported. The
audit will track data to source
systems and data. It seems
particularly timely to focus
the audit around crime data,
particularly as the
Constabulary are changing
the system that records
crime types

Assurance

Force

July 2014

September
2014

Collaboration

A review of the joint
efficiency savings plans
within the East Midlands to
ensure that these are clearly
defined, aligned within the
Group, monitored for
achievement including an
assessment of benefits
realisation

Assurance

OPCC &
Force

September
2014

December
2014

Commissioning

The specific scope of the
review will be determined
nearer the time but it is likely
to include Victims
Commissioning

Assurance

PCC

September
2014

December
2014

ICT – Mobile
Devices

A review of the Force’s
mobile device management
solution to ensure this has
been developed and
configured to adequately
secure and protect Force
systems and data

Assurance

Force

TBC

TBC

Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Constabulary | 4

Regulatory
Checks Divisions

To undertake regularity
audits, throughout the year
across each Division. The
audits will consider cash and
property collection and
management

Assurance

Force

Each quarter

Each quarter

Victims

To provide assurance over
compliance with the new
Victims Code

Assurance

Force

September
2014

December
2014

Asset
Management

Review to provide assurance
on the key finance systems.
In addition, external audit will
place reliance on our work to
inform their audit

Assurance

OPCC &
Force

December
2014

March 2015

-

As used

January
2015

March 2015

Cash Receipting
& Treasury
Management
General Ledger
including
Agresso
upgrade
Contingency

For coverage of risks and
changes in assurance needs
as these arise during the
year
To be agreed in advance
with Management

Follow up

To meet internal auditing
standards and to provide
management with on-going
assurance regarding
implementation of
recommendations

Management

This will include:
•

Planning

•

Preparation for, and
attendance at, Joint Audit
& Risk Committee
meetings

•

Regular liaison and
progress updates

Assurance

OPCC &
Force

Ongoing through year

This report, together with any attachments, is provided pursuant to the terms of our engagement. The use of the report is solely for internal purposes by the
management and Board of our client and, pursuant to the terms of the engagement, it should not be copied or disclosed to any third party or otherwise
quoted or referred to, in whole in part, without our written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is
not intended for any other purpose.
© 2013 Baker Tilly Business Services Limited
The term "partner" is a title for senior employees, none of whom provide any services on their own behalf.
Baker Tilly Business Services Limited (04066924) is registered in England and Wales. Registered office 25 Farringdon Street, London, EC4A 4AB.
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REPORT OF THE INTERNAL AUDITOR
8B:

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To receive a progress report from the internal auditors on their work to date
this during this financial year.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS
Progress report

2.1

As part of the management of the internal audit process, a progress report is
provided to each meeting of the JARAC. Attached at APPENDIX A to this
report is the latest progress report for March 2014.

2.2

The report shows a summary of progress against the Internal Audit plan,
including the status of the assignment, the opinion issued and the actions by
priority, categorised into high, medium or low. The report will be presented by
a representative from Baker Tilly. JARAC Members will then have the
opportunity to question the internal auditor.

2.3

There is an opportunity to review the content of the audit plan to ensure it
continues to be fit for purpose.

3.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Committee takes assurance that the internal audit plan addresses
relevant matters and is being delivered as expected.

4.

IMPLICATIONS

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained
within the report

1
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MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the
author
LOW – no narrative required

LOW
Crime & Disorder

X

Environmental

X

Equality & Diversity

X

Financial

X

Health & Safety

X

Human Rights

X

Legal

X

Personnel

X

MEDIUM

HIGH

Contact details

Name: Helen Boffy

in the event

External telephone number: 0300 122 6005

of enquiries

Email address: Helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS
1.

Internal Audit Plan 2013/14

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A. Internal Audit Progress Report 13 March 2014
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Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire and Derbyshire Constabulary
Internal Audit Progress Report
13th March 2014

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire & Derbyshire Constabulary

1

Introduction
The internal audit plan for 2013/14 was approved by the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee on 14
March 2013. This report provides an update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our
work to date.

Summary of Progress against the Internal Audit Plan
Assignment
Status

Opinion

Post Implementation –
Agresso

Completed

Advisory

Payroll, HR, Mouchel

Work is ongoing –
th
started 24 Feb

Advisory

Payroll

Work is ongoing –
th
started 24 Feb

Reports considered today are
shown in italics

Actions Agreed (by priority)
High
Medium
Low

Audits to address specific risks

Governance – Financial
Governance
Network Security –
Follow Up
Grant Scheme
Estate Management
Regional Collaboration Governance

Final Report

-

-

-

Green

-

-

-

Green

-

-

4

Scoping document
issued
Final Report
Draft report issued
Final Report

Risk Management

Work is ongoing –
th
started 26 Feb

Priority Based Budgeting

Work is ongoing –
th
started 24 Feb

Amber Red

Process Maps*

Completed

Advisory

-

-

-

General Ledger

Final Report

Green

-

-

-

Creditors

Final Report

Green

-

1

-

Training

Completed

-

-

-

-

Final Report

Good Progress

-

-

3

Follow Up

*This work is completed and feedback provided to the Head of Strategic Finance

Other Matters
We have issued our scoping document for Network Security (Management of the Local Area Network). It is
intended to cover those areas where recommendations were made following our review completed in July
2012, with consideration to the network changes that have taken place since our initial review.

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire and Derbyshire Constabulary
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Key Findings from Internal Audit Work

Assignment: General Ledger

Opinion:

The scope of the audit work was to examine the Constabulary’s policies, procedures and internal controls relating to
the operation of the general ledger in order to confirm the integrity of the data input, maintenance of the ledger
accounts held within the system and capacity to produce reliable information.
The general ledger is the Constabulary’s main accounting system and operates via the Agresso software. Agresso is
an integrated financial system that also incorporates the purchase and sales ledgers.
The Constabulary has a comprehensive Chart of Accounts in place, and this is maintained by the Strategic Finance
team. Amendments to codes, the introduction of new codes and deletion of old codes are controlled and coordinated using the workflow system available within the Agresso system. System access is also strictly controlled by
the Systems Administrator.
Procedural documentation and guidance notes are in place to ensure that employees are aware of roles and
responsibilities and all adhere to a consistent working practice.
We have not made any recommendations in relation to the design or the application of the control framework. There
is a robust control framework in place, that is appropriate and that is being complied with. From our work undertaken
it has not been necessary to make any recommendations.

Assignment: Creditors

Opinion:

The Agresso finance system is used to record all purchase ledger transactions and the associated creditor
payments. This includes the administration the processing of purchase orders, invoices and payments made to
suppliers.
The system includes a workflow process which ensures that orders are raised and approved by an appropriate
individual and budget holder and that adequate segregation of duties exists within the process. The same officer is
not able to request, order and approve the same order. Where a contract is in place then additional orders are not
required as invoices are received in line with the contractual terms.
Payments to suppliers and individuals are made by BACS and cheques, currently there are more cheque payments
being processed than staff would like so efforts will be made to contact suppliers to obtain bank details were these
are not already on account.
We have not made any recommendations in relation to the application of the control framework, but one medium
priority recommendation to strengthen the design of the control framework. This is in relation to the process that is
in place for administering changes to supplier details, specifically those around bank account changes.
Action

Responsible Officer

Date

The Head of Business Services should ensure that a
reminder is issued to staff, on a six monthly basis, to
remind them that any requests for changes to bank
details, received from suppliers, should be confirmed
direct with the supplier, using the supplier data held on
the masterfile and not using the details included within
the correspondence received from the supplier.
(Medium)

Head of
Services

Implemented

Business

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire & Derbyshire Constabulary

3

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement
of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information provided in
this report is as accurate as possible, based on the information provided and documentation reviewed, no complete guarantee or warranty can be given with
regard to the advice and information contained herein. Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist.
This report, together with any attachments, is provided pursuant to the terms of our engagement. The use of the report is solely for internal purposes by the
management and Board of our client and, pursuant to the terms of the engagement, it should not be copied or disclosed to any third party or otherwise
quoted or referred to, in whole in part, without our written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is
not intended for any other purpose.
© 2013 Baker Tilly Business Services Limited
The term "partner" is a title for senior employees, none of whom provide any services on their own behalf.
Baker Tilly Business Services Limited (04066924) is registered in England and Wales. Registered office 25 Farringdon Street, London, EC4A 4AB.
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8C:

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT: GENERAL LEDGER

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To receive and review a report from the Internal Auditors on the review of the
management of the general ledger system, and having considered the report
to take assurance as to the adequacy of the internal controls.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

2.1

The scope of the audit work was to examine the Constabulary’s policies,
procedures and internal controls relating to the operation of the general ledger
in order to confirm the integrity of the data input, maintenance of the ledger
accounts held within the system and capacity to produce reliable information.

2.2

The aim was to review the design and application of the control frame work to
evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and
the extent to which controls had been applied, with a view to providing an
opinion.

2.3

The full report is attached at APPENDIX A, and states that taking account of
the issues identified, the organisation can take substantial assurance that the
controls upon which the organisation relies to manage this area are suitably
designed, consistently applied and effective.

2.4

There were no recommendations as a result of the audit.

3.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Committee take assurance that the controls upon
which the organisation relies to manage this area are suitably designed,
consistently applied and effective.

1
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4.

IMPLICATIONS

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained
within the report
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the
author
LOW – no narrative required

LOW
Crime & Disorder

X

Environmental

X

Equality & Diversity

X

Financial

X

Health & Safety

X

Human Rights

X

Legal

X

Personnel

X

MEDIUM

HIGH

Contact details

Name: Helen Boffy

in the event

External telephone number: 0300 122 6005

of enquiries

Email address: Helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS
1.

Internal Audit Programme 2013/14

Appendix A. Internal Audit Report on General Ledger controls March 2014
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Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire & Derbyshire
Constabulary
Internal Audit Report (5.13/14)
FINAL
General Ledger
3 March 2014

Police & Crime Commissioner
for Derbyshire & Derbyshire
Constabulary

General Ledger
(5.13/14)

Contents
Section

Page

Executive Summary

1

Debrief meeting

28 November 2013 &
20 January 2014

Draft report issued

27 January 2014

Responses received

3 March 2014

Final report issued

3 March 2014

Auditors

Patrick Green, Head of Internal Audit
Angela Ward, Manager
Kelly Waddoups, Assistant Manager
Habiba Rasul, Internal Auditor

Client sponsor

Helen Boffy, Treasurer
Terry Neaves, Director of Finance
Daniel Fern, Head of Strategic Finance
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Helen Boffy, Treasurer
Terry Neaves, Director of Finance
Daniel Fern, Head of Strategic Finance

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive
statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the
information provided in this report is as accurate as possible, based on the information provided and documentation reviewed, no complete
guarantee or warranty can be given with regard to the advice and information contained herein. Our work does not provide absolute assurance that
material errors, loss or fraud do not exist.
This report is prepared solely for the use of Board and senior management of Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire & Derbyshire
Constabulary. Details may be made available to specified external agencies, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be
quoted or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared,
and is not intended for any other purpose.
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1.1

General Ledger
(5.13/14)

Executive Summary
Introduction
An audit of General Ledger was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan
for 2013/14.
The scope of the audit work was to examine the Constabulary’s policies, procedures and
internal controls relating to the operation of the general ledger in order to confirm the integrity of
the data input, maintenance of the ledger accounts held within the system and capacity to
produce reliable information.
The general ledger is the Constabulary’s main accounting system and operates via the
Agresso software. Agresso is an integrated financial system that also incorporates the
purchase and sales ledgers.
The Constabulary has a comprehensive Chart of Accounts in place, and this is maintained by
the Strategic Finance team. Amendments to codes, the introduction of new codes and deletion
of old codes are controlled and co-ordinated using the workflow system available within the
Agresso system. System access is also strictly controlled by the Systems Administrator.
Procedural documentation and guidance notes are in place to ensure that employees are
aware of roles and responsibilities and all adhere to a consistent working practice.

1.2

Conclusion
Taking account of the issues identified, the Officer of the
Organisation can take substantial assurance that the controls
upon which the organisation relies to manage this area are
suitably designed, consistently applied and effective.

The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence
obtained during the review. The key findings from this review are as follows:
Design and application of control framework


The Financial Regulations are included within the Police Financial Handbook. The
Financial Handbook is adequate for purpose with sufficient detail and narrative provided
for key accounting areas. The Handbook is readily available via the intranet. The
document was last reviewed in 2012 and remains reflective of current working practices.
In addition to the Handbook, local procedure notes have been drafted in-house and act
as a quick reference guide to the system, which assists the Finance Team in the
completion of their day to day tasks.



Agresso, the accounting system, is set up with a workflow system to provide the level of
segregation of duties and authorisation for the various transactions that are processed.
Access to the finance system is restricted to authorised staff. Access rights are routinely
reviewed. At the time of the audit there were 128 active users.


A sample of 15 users - seven new users and eight changes to access levels
were selected and reviewed to ensure that a completed User Permission
Request Form was on file for all the new users and there was sufficient
documentation to support the changes for those with a change of access
rights. Five of the new users were also selected and a full review of the access
levels granted performed to ensure that this was accurate based on the initial
request form. Our review identified that there was a complete User
Permission Form on file for the new users and the access rights for those
selected were correct.



For five of the changes selected we could not find any supporting paperwork
on file.
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Police & Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire & Derbyshire
Constabulary

General Ledger
(5.13/14)

The Accounting Technician did provide us with a copy of his monitoring
spreadsheet which details changes that have been made and also provided
an explanation as to what occurred however as some of these changes do
relate to a change of access level there is a risk that without corresponding
paperwork the change may not have received the appropriate authorisation.
We discussed this risk as part of the debrief process and the Constabulary
have separately reviewed the spreadsheet, together with the audit logs
generated by the Agresso system and it was considered that appropriate
controls and lines of accountability are in place without introducing further
bureaucracy, into the process. Therefore no formal recommendation is made
at the time.


Amendments, creation or removal of accounts within the accounting system are
processed by the Systems Administrator, Accounting Technician or the Management
Accounts Team upon the receipt of an official form. We selected a sample of 15 new
codes that had been set up on the ledger and it was confirmed in all cases that a
completed new account form was held.



Journals are used to correct or reallocate transactions on the general ledger.



Suspense accounts are reviewed and cleared at month-end.



There is a month end checklist in place used as a procedural guide and to evidence that
all month end tasks have been completed. For the previous three months, audit
confirmed that there was a completed month end checklist on file.



Bank reconciliations are completed. The bank reconciliation was up to date and for those
bank reconciliations reviewed it was established that all bank reconciliations reconciled
and had been appropriately reviewed.



Management Accounts are produced and reported to the Strategic Governance Board.
We selected a sample of figures from the Management Accounts and budget reports to
trace to the Agresso system. No problems were identified.



Correct closing balances have been brought forward following the year end process.
From our testing of 10 account balances, it was confirmed that these were accurately
reflected in the opening balances for 2013/14.

1.3 Scope of the review
To evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to
which controls have been applied, with a view to providing an opinion. Control activities are put
in place to ensure that risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed
effectively. When planning the audit, the following controls for review and limitations were
agreed:
Control activities relied upon:


There is a month end reconciliation process conducted to complete accurate and timely
management accounts.



Suspense accounts are reviewed and cleared.



Journals are accurately prepared and appropriately reviewed.



There is a set process for the set-up of new codes within the chart of accounts.



Access to the General Ledger is restricted.

Limitations to the scope of the audit:


This review covers the maintenance of the general (nominal) ledger and does not provide
assurance on the management of and transactions within other financial modules and
feeder systems.



Testing will be completed on a sample basis only, based on transactions from the current
financial year. Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material error; loss or
fraud does not exist.
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Our work does not provide an absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do
not exist.

The approach taken for this audit was a System-Based Audit.

1.4

Recommendations Summary
We have not made any recommendations as part of the review.
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JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMIITTEE
13 MARCH 2014
REPORT OF THE INTERNAL AUDITOR
8D:

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT: PAYMENTS AND CREDITORS

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To receive and review a report from the Internal Auditors on the review of the
management of the payments and creditors system, and having considered
the report and the action plan arising, to take assurance as to the adequacy of
the internal controls.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

2.1

The scope of the audit work was to examine the Constabulary’s policies,
procedures and internal controls relating to the operation of payments and
creditors particularly in respect of control through the Agresso workflow
function.

2.2

The full report is attached at APPENDIX A, and states that taking account of
the issues identified, the organisation can take substantial assurance that the
controls upon which the organisation relies to manage this area are suitably
designed, consistently applied and effective.

2.3

There was 1 medium priority recommendation as a result of the audit.

3.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Committee take assurance that the controls upon
which the organisation relies to manage creditors and payments are suitably
designed, consistently applied and effective.

4.

IMPLICATIONS

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.
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HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained
within the report
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the
author
LOW – no narrative required

LOW
Crime & Disorder

X

Environmental

X

Equality & Diversity

X

Financial

X

Health & Safety

X

Human Rights

X

Legal

X

Personnel

X

MEDIUM

HIGH

Contact details

Name: Helen Boffy

in the event

External telephone number: 0300 122 6005

of enquiries

Email address: Helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS
1.

Internal Audit Programme 2013/14

Appendix A. Internal Audit Report on Payments and Creditors March 2014
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Executive Summary

1.1

Introduction
An audit of Payments and Creditors was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for
2013/14.
The Agresso finance system is used to record all purchase ledger transactions and the associated creditor
payments. This includes the administration the processing of purchase orders, invoices and payments made to
suppliers.
The system includes a workflow process which ensures that orders are raised and approved by an appropriate
individual and budget holder and that adequate segregation of duties exists within the process. The same officer
is not able to request, order and approve the same order. Where a contract is in place then additional orders are
not required as invoices are received in line with the contractual terms.
Payments to suppliers and individuals are made by BACS and cheques, currently there are more cheque
payments being processed than staff would like so efforts will be made to contact suppliers to obtain bank details
were these are not already on account.

1.2

Conclusion
Taking account of the issues identified, the Organisation can take
substantial assurance that the controls upon which the organisation
relies to manage this area are suitably designed, consistently
applied and effective

The above conclusions feeding into the overall assurance level are based on the evidence obtained during the
review. The key findings from this review are as follows:
Design of control framework
We confirmed that the following controls are in place and designed adequately:

A Financial Handbook is documented which includes guidance and procedural documentation in relation to
the creditors function.

Purchase orders are completed for all purchases where these are required, and have been raised prior to
the invoice being received.

Invoices are registered on Agresso as they are received. If an invoice matches the original purchase order
this then follows the workflow system through to payment.

Payments made by BACS are reviewed and authorised by a delegated authority prior to payment being
made.
However we identified the following areas where controls could be strengthened and have made
recommendations accordingly:

Changes to supplier bank details are processed following receipt of a letter or invoice; the validity of this
change is not confirmed with the supplier direct.
Application of and compliance with control framework

We reviewed a sample of payments made via BACS and confirmed that all had been authorised
appropriately prior to the payment being made.

Purchase orders or contracts were in place to support all of the 15 payments made included within our
sample.

The goods / services and been received on Agresso for all those invoices for which a purchase order had
been raised.
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Scope of the Review
To evaluate the adequacy of risk management and control within the system and the extent to which controls
have been applied, with a view to providing an opinion. Control activities are put in place to ensure that risks to
the achievement of the organisation’s objectives are managed effectively. When planning the audit, the following
controls for review and limitations were agreed:
Control activities relied upon:

Authorisation limits and access rights are controlled through the Agresso workflow function.
Limitations to the scope of the audit:

We will not comment on whether the organisation achieves value for money for its purchases.


This review focuses on the identification and payment of creditors.



Testing will be completed on a sample basis from transactions within the current financial year.



Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material error; loss or fraud does not exist.

The approach taken for this audit was a System-Based Audit.

1.4

Recommendations Summary
The following tables highlight the number and categories of recommendations made. The Action Plan at Section
2 details the specific recommendations made as well as agreed management actions to implement them.
Recommendations made during this audit:
Our recommendations address the design and application of the control framework as follows:
Priority
High

Medium

Low

Design of control framework

0

1

0

Application of control framework

0

0

0

Total

0

1

0

The recommendations address the risks within the scope of the audit as set out below:
Priority
Area

High

Medium

Low

Procedural documentation

0

0

0

Purchase Order and Invoicing Process

0

0

0

Payments

0

1

0

Reconciliations and reporting

0

0

0

Total

0

1

0
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Additional Feedback
We have included some comparative data to benchmark the number of recommendations made, as shown in the
table below. In the past year, we have undertaken a number of audits of a similar nature in the sector.
Level of Assurance

Percentage of Reviews

Results of this Audit

Green

85.71%

X

Amber / Green

14.29%

Amber / Red

-

Red

-

Recommendations
Recommendations made

Average number in similar
audits

Number in this audit

2

1
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Action Plan
The priority of the recommendations made is as follows:
Priority

Description

High
Medium

Recommendations are prioritised to reflect our assessment of risk associated with the control weaknesses.

Low
Suggestion

Ref

1

These are not formal recommendations that impact our overall opinion, but used to highlight a suggestion or idea that
management may want to consider.

Recommendation

Categorisation

The Head of Business Services should
ensure that a reminder is issued to staff,
on a six monthly basis, to remind them
that any requests for changes to bank
details, received from suppliers, should
be confirmed direct with the supplier,
using the supplier data held on the
masterfile and not using the details
included within the correspondence
received from the supplier.

Medium

Accepted
(Y/N)
Y

Management Comment

Agreed.

Implementation
Date
Implemented

Manager
Responsible
Head of Business
Services
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Findings and Recommendations
This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in
control identified from our testing and not the outcome of all audit testing undertaken.
Controls (actual and/or
missing)

Adequate
Design
(yes/no)

Test Result / Implications

Recommendation

Categorisation

Yes

We obtained a report from Agresso which identified
those supplier accounts on which a change had
been made; however the reporting facility was
unable to include clear details of exactly what the
change related to and therefore we were unable to
fully test these changes.

The Head of Business
Services should ensure
that a reminder is issued
to staff, on a six monthly
basis, to remind them
that any requests for
changes to bank details,
received from suppliers,
should be confirmed
direct with the supplier,
using the supplier data
held on the masterfile
and not using the details
included
within
the
correspondence received
from the supplier.

Medium

Area: Suppliers and Payments
1

Changes are made to supplier
standing data only following
receipt of adequate supporting
documentation.

We discussed the process for changing bank details
with the Finance Support Manager, as this has been
the area that has seen a recent increase in
fraudulent activity. We were informed that bank
details would be updated from details received on
an invoice - this increases the potential for a
fraudulent invoice to be received and payment
made prior to the fraud being identified.
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JOINT REPORT OF CHIEF CONSTABLE AND TREASURER

9A:

VALUE FOR MONEY

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To enable the Committee to gain assurance concerning the delivery of value for
money by the Commissioner and Chief Constable.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS
Background

2.1

Along with all other Police Forces, Derbyshire Police has faced considerable
budget reductions as a result of austerity measures over the last four years.

2.2

Derbyshire Police is currently one of the lowest spending police forces nationally in
terms of spend per head of population.

2.3

Derbyshire Police is not a low risk policing area. Although crime has reduced
considerably over the last 10 by over 50% equivalent to 52,000 fewer crimes,
Derbyshire Police still faces medium level of policing risk.

2.4

During this period of austerity, Derbyshire Police has delivered savings totalling
some £21.3m and has still seen crimes reduce by some 24.4% in this period of
austerity, although like many other forces it is seeing a slight up turn in crime this
year.

2.5

Over the next four years, Derbyshire Police faces further austerity cuts in the
region of £22m, although these will be subject to Government decisions over the
next four years.

2.6

This snapshot demonstrates that at a high level Derbyshire Police is delivering
value for money.
o It is one of the lowest spending forces nationally
o Despite making substantial budget cuts, it has been able to still reduce crime
and improve performance.
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HMIC Oversight
2.7

HM Inspector of Constabulary (HMIC) provides some oversight concerning the
delivery of value for money and each force’s preparedness for managing current
and future austerity cuts.

2.8

This work is focussed in two areas. HMIC carries out an annual “Valuing the
Police Review” that looks at the steps forces have taken so far to manage austerity
along with their plans to manage future austerity.

2.9

The HMIC also issues annual value for money profiles, which provide a detailed
statistical analysis of the cost of delivering policing in each area and to an extent
the relative efficiency of individual forces.

2.10

The Value for Money Profiles make comparisons with other similar forces, which
are considered to face similar demographic and social issues as Derbyshire.

2.11

The Most Similar Groupings are only a best fit and can lead to some unusual
comparators. For example Derbyshire has previously been compared in the past
with forces who have a coastline.

2.12

Groupings are kept under review and now Derbyshire is compared to Staffordshire,
Avon and Somerset, Cheshire, Northamptonshire, Essex, Kent and Wiltshire.
These comparisons need to be treated with a lot of care. Often national and
regional comparisons are therefore more reliable.

2.13

Above all, the profiles show the choices that forces have made in the way they
allocate resources. The fact that some may choose to allocate more resources to
a particular areas does not necessarily mean they are inefficient but can mean that
they have greater pressures in that area. The important thing is that where forces
spend more or less in a particular area it is due to a conscious decision that they
have taken.
VFM Profile 2013 for Derbyshire

2.14

The results of the VFM profiles are published on the HMIC web-site. Annex A
provides a summary of the latest 2013 profile for Derbyshire Constabulary. A more
detailed analysis is also available on the HMIC web-site and has been circulated to
committee members.

2.15

Overall the profiles provide a good degree of reassurance that Derbyshire Police is
managing its resources well and delivering value for money.
o It’s spending is less than similar forces and it earns more external income
o It still spends more on police officers and less on police staff and PCSOs.
o It is not surprising that as it spends less on police staff its non-staff costs are
higher as it may need to contract in certain pieces of work.
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o Overall its resources are directed more towards front-line services and less
towards business support services
2.16

The profiles also highlight that Derbyshire Police relies more heavily on external
funding than other similar forces and raises less money locally. This means that
austerity has hit Derbyshire Police harder than its similar forces, given that external
funding is the area, which has seen considerable reductions.

2.17

While Derbyshire deals with slightly fewer 999 calls than similar forces, it deals
with nearly 50% more emergency and priority incidents. The force tends to deploy
officers to more incidents than most other forces. It is also relevant that the police
are picking up more incidents from other services, who no longer have 24hr cover
as a result of austerity measures.

2.18

Overall crime in Derbyshire tends to be below similar forces, although this only
recognises recorded crime and not the breadth of other criminality that impacts on
the workload of Derbyshire Police. Detection levels are similar to other forces.

2.19

The analysis at Annex A also provides a list of outliers, where the force is either in
the top or bottom 10% in terms of its costs. In the outliers identified for Derbyshire
it is predominantly in the bottom 10%, showing that its costs in a range of areas
are significantly below other forces.

2.20

The two main exceptions for this are on National Policing and Collaboration.
Derbyshire is the lead for the East Midlands Counter Terrorism Intelligence Unit
and is engaged in a number of collaborative projects within the region.

2.21

As austerity bites further, cost comparisons will continue to change. All forces
faces similar but not exactly the same costs pressures. Derbyshire Police faces a
particular challenge to reduce further, given that it is already a low spending force.
Its reliance on government support also means that it faces bigger spending cuts
than other forces that generate a larger proportion of their funding from council tax.

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

That the Committee gains assurance from the report and detailed Value for Money
profiles that the force is delivering value for money.

4.

IMPLICATIONS
LOW
Crime & Disorder
Environmental
Equality & Diversity
Financial
Health & Safety
Human Rights
Legal
Personnel
Risk

MEDIUM

HIGH

x
x
x
X
X
X
X
X
X
3
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Contact details
in the event
of enquiries

Name: Chief Superintendent Sunita Gamblin
External telephone number: 0300 122 4196
Email address: sgbenquiries@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

APPENDIX DETAILS
A

HMIC Summary VFM Profiles 2013: Derbyshire Constabulary
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JOINT REPORT OF CHIEF CONSTABLE AND TREASURER

9B:

PRIORITY BASED BUDGETING

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To enable the Committee to gain assurance concerning the force’s plans to deliver
value for money in the future.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS
BACKGROUND

2.1

Derbyshire Police estimates that it will need to deliver further savings of some
£22m over the next few years, on top of the £21.3m of savings that it has already
delivered.

2.2

This represents a considerable challenge to Derbyshire Police, particularly as it is
already one of the lowest spending forces nationally.

2.3

In June 2009, Derbyshire Police established a Moving Forward Project to scope
the potential to deliver savings and position the organisation for the challenges that
lay ahead. Initial work sought to identify areas of business where the organisation
could achieve immediate savings of £3m during 2010.

2.4

The project was not just focused on making cuts but was also about improving
service. The key principles were to: -

2.5

•

Challenge bureaucracy in everything the Constabulary does, to build and
increase public confidence.

•

Embed the Constabulary’s values.

•

Deliver increased efficiencies and value for money.

•

Understand, accept and manage consequential risk.

•

Maintain the Constabulary’s priorities as a focus in decision making.

•

Ensure that activity supports those responsible for delivering operational
policing.

•

To build and increase public confidence.

In January 2010, the Moving Forward Programme team was established to drive
and oversee the implementation of the programme. The team also undertook
1
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responsibility to research and review other opportunities for potential financial
savings.
2.6

Derbyshire Police has already had to make a number of tough choices through this
review. Police officer numbers reduced by 159 officers over the last 3 years,
following an 18 month recruitment freeze. Some 277 police staff posts have also
been lost, although the force has kept redundancies to a minimum.

2.7

The main areas for savings to date have been:•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

2.8

Police Officer and PCSO Recruitment Freeze.
Police Overtime – A 5% across the board reduction in police overtime
Transferring responsibility for overseeing evidence gathering and case
preparation back to sergeants with the deletion of 26 evidence review officer
posts
Procurement savings including a significant reduction in catering facilities
across the force
Rationalisation of the vehicle fleet in line with changing operational needs
Streamlining the criminal justice process on the basis of an in-depth
process review
Streamlining support services, with a central administrative support hub.
A significant reduction in spending on Forensics submissions and support
to bring the cost of the service more into line with other forces.
Reviewing and reducing the range of on-call payments to police staff
members to ensure that they meet the force’s needs.
The implementation of a new 3 Divisional policing structure which will
release police officers to be deployed into areas of greater risk as well as
generating significant cost savings in criminal justice and administrative
services.
A review of the Shift System to maximise officer visibility and ensure officers
are deployed to areas of greatest risk whilst continuing to recognise the
physiological and welfare stresses of those officers working 24/7 shift patterns
Centralisation of Crime Management to rationalise the officer and staff
resources required to record crime
Reviewing the level of analytical capacity – a significant number of our staff
collect and analyse data. Work is continuing to determine the level of analytical
capability we need across the force.
An Estates Review to reduce the number of operational buildings across the
force.

Collaboration with other forces has also played a part in managing these savings,
although it has not directly delivered many savings. It has helped us manage with
fewer police officers, particularly by sharing resources in more specialised and less
predictable crime areas such as serious and organised crime and major crime.
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2.9

While its existing approach to delivering savings has been successful, the
Constabulary realised that it needed a new approach to delivering savings if it was
to make a further £22m in budget cuts over the next four years.

2.10

In September 2013 the Constabulary embarked on the next phase of the Moving
Forward programme. The main focus will be on fundamental Priority Based
Budgeting (PBB) reviews.

2.11

Each area is undertaking an in depth budget review, supported by finance staff and
the central moving forward team. The reviews assess the relative priority and
importance of the various services that the team delivers as well as looking at a
range of options for their delivery over the next four years.

2.12

These examine and challenge every aspect of service delivery across the force
and ask managers to consider how they might deliver a reduced level or service
and in extreme cases a minimum level of service.

2.13

This sets out to provide a four year plan for making further budget reductions that
can be flexed according to the actual level of reductions that the force faces.

2.14

The first phase of reviews is well underway with two further phases now
commencing. The Commissioner and Constabulary will consider the outcome of
these reviews towards the end of September. This will enable them to produce a
comprehensive four year plan to address the financial challenge that Derbyshire
Police faces.

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

That the Committee gains assurance from the report that Derbyshire Police is
continuing to take steps to deliver future value for money.

4.

IMPLICATIONS
LOW
Crime & Disorder
Environmental
Equality & Diversity
Financial
Health & Safety
Human Rights
Legal
Personnel
Risk
Contact details
in the event
of enquiries

MEDIUM

HIGH

x
x
x
X
X
X
X
X
X

Name: Chief Superintendent Sunita Gamblin
External telephone number: 0300 122 4196
Email address: sgbenquiries@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
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13 MARCH 2014
REPORT OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE

10A: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2013/14

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To advise of changes to the final accounts process both nationally and locally
with particular emphasis on the role of the Committee.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

Introduction of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 changed the
way in which the police in England and Wales are governed and held
accountable.

2.2

One of the key reforms was to create Police and Crime Commissioners and at
the same time the Chief Constable was established as a separate body.

2.3

The primary function of the body headed by the Chief Constable is the exercise
of operational policing duties under the Police Act 1996. The Commissioner’s
function is to hold the Chief Constable to account for the exercise of these duties,
thereby securing the maintenance of an efficient and effective police service in
Derbyshire.

2.4

The 2013/14 statutory accounts will be the second to be prepared under these
arrangements. For accounting purposes the Commissioner and Chief Constable
together are known as the PCC Group. A separate set of statutory accounts is
published for the Commissioner and PCC Group to recognise all the financial
transactions incurred during 2013/14 for policing in Derbyshire.

3.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS
Preparation of the 2013/14 Accounts

3.1

The 2013/14 Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2013/14. The Accounts reflect the
current legislative framework as well as the local arrangements operating in
practice. Key elements of this framework include: •

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act).

•

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended).
1
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•

The Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police
Service of England and Wales 2013.

•

Scheme of Delegation between the Commissioner and Chief Constable.

•

The Financial Handbook of the Commissioner and Chief Constable.

3.2

Each year a timetable is prepared setting out the key processes that must be
followed and respective deadlines to ensure the accounts are prepared in
accordance with the above framework (paragraph 3.1) and by the statutory
deadline. A copy of the 2013/14 timetable is attached at Appendix A.

3.3

The accounts reflect the Government’s intention to phase in reforms over a
number of years. Since 22 November 2012 the assets, liabilities and reserves
during the first phase of transition have remained under the Commissioner’s
control. The Commissioner receives all income and funding and makes all the
payments for the Group from the PCC Police Fund. In turn the Chief Constable
fulfils his functions under the Act within an annual budget (set by the
Commissioner in conjunction with the Chief Constable). A scheme of delegation
is in operation between the two bodies determining their respective
responsibilities during the first phase, as well as local arrangements in respect of
the use of the Commissioner’s assets and staff. The primary statements for
2013/14 reflect the position during the first phase of transition.
Stage 2 Transfer

3.4

In November the Home Secretary agreed the Commissioner’s proposals for
stage 2 transfer. Effectively this means that the Commissioner will transfer all
police staff, with the exception of those within his office, to the Chief Constable.
This transfer will come into force on 1st April 2014.This means that the stage 2
transfer will not require any changes to the presentation of the 2013/14 accounts.

3.5

On 31 January 2014 CIPFA wrote to all Force Finance Directors and Treasurers
for the Commissioners outlining their approach to providing guidance for the
preparation of the 2013/14 Statements of Accounts. This letter had been
prompted following a recent meeting between CIPFA and the Audit Commission
to discuss the findings from last year’s audit, which identified variations in the
way Police Accounts were prepared in 2012/13 that did not necessarily reflect
differences in local arrangements.

3.6

As a result of these discussions and following the change in the legislative
position of the Chief Constable, CIPFA are deciding whether it would be
appropriate to provide additional accounting guidance for Police bodies.

3.7

The main issue CIPFA and the Audit Commission are concerned with is the use
of the principle and agent concept to produce accounts with zero entries for the
Chief Constable. CIPFA’s lack of guidance on this issue has meant Force’s
interpreting the situation themselves, which is far from ideal when all Force’s
outside of London were implementing similar changes.
2
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3.8

CIPFA now appear to be suggesting that they will issue clearer guidance albeit
for what is still a transitional year. The guidance is likely to require Police bodies
to make assessments of control so that items of expenditure are shown in the
individual accounts of both the Commissioner and Chief Constable, consistent
with the checklists of indicators of control for both assets and employees in the
Police Bulletin issued relating to the 2012/13 Accounts. CIPFA go on to explain
that where assets and employees are assessed as being under the control of the
Chief Constable it is important that all the associated costs are properly reflected.

3.9

This is likely to have a significant impact on the accounts for 2013/14 and is likely
to mean that the previous year’s figures will also need to be restated for
comparative purposes. It is unfortunate that CIPFA has not acted more quickly
to remove this uncertainty and issue clear guidance well before the end of the
financial year.

3.10

We have therefore taken the initiative and reviewed the approach for preparing
the Chief Constable’s accounts (as shown in Appendix A) to ensure the
principles followed remain valid.

3.11

The review concluded that the approach adopted for the preparation of the Chief
Constable’s accounts is clear that control resides with the Commissioner. This is
because the Commissioner is the recipient of all funding, including the
government grant and precept and other sources of income, related to policing
and crime reduction and all funding for a force must come via the Commissioner.
Furthermore as the Commissioner sets the budget for policing and only has to
consult with the Chief Constable and relevant partners and stakeholders in
planning the budget no control can be exercised by the Chief Constable.

3.12

Finally, due to the significant changes brought about by the introduction of the
Act the approach adopted by Derbyshire was drafted and forwarded for comment
to the external auditors (KPMG) in October 2012. No issues were raised prior to
or during the audit and an unqualified opinion on the accounts was given. The
fact that no issues have been raised by the external auditors also confirms that
the approach adopted was correct.
Accounting Policies

3.13

Accounting policies are the specific principals, conventions, rules and practices
that are applied in preparing and presenting the annual accounts. The
Commissioner and Chief Constable follows broadly the standards and policies
contained in the Code when preparing their final accounts; the Statements also
accord with the Commissioner’s and Chief Constable’s own Accounting Policies.
It is highly desirable that the Accounting Policies are approved by the Joint Audit,
Risk and Assurance Committee, so setting the framework for final accounts to be
prepared and the Statements produced ready for audit in June. Attached at the
Appendices C and D is the Statement of Accounting Policies for the 2013/14
Statement of Accounts for the Committee’s approval.

3.14

The only changes to the accounting policies for 2013/14 relate to the removal of
policies relating to stock and carbon reduction that formed part of the
3
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Commissioner’s and PCC Group accounting policies. Details of these changes
are detailed below: 

Stock has been reclassified as supplies and services during the financial
year. This means expenditure is now charged direct to the Income and
Expenditure Account when purchases are made. Previously expenditure was
initially charged to the Balance Sheet and would only be written down to the
Income and Expenditure Account when items were issued from stores. As
the quantities of stock held have significantly reduced over the past few years
prompting the review of this accounting policy, the financial effect of this
change is minimal.



The rules governing the Government’s Carbon Reduction Scheme has
changed following the introduction of Police and Crime Commissioners
PCCs). The Environment Agency has stated that PCCs are a new legal entity
delaying participation in the scheme until 2018.

4.

RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1

The report is noted.

4.2

The Statement of Accounting Policies is approved.

5.

IMPLICATIONS
Crime & Disorder
Environmental
Equality & Diversity
Financial
Health & Safety
Human Rights
Legal
Personnel
Contact details
in the event
of enquiries

LOW









MEDIUM

HIGH

Name: Chief Superintendent Sunita Gamblin
External telephone number: 0300 122 4196
Email address: sgbenquiries@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A. Accounting approach for the creation of the new Police and Crime
Commissioner for Derbyshire (PCC) and the Chief Constable for
Derbyshire (CC)
Appendix B. Year-end closedown plan
Appendix C. Statement of Accounting Policies for the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Derbyshire
Appendix D. Statement of Accounting Policies for the Chief Constable for
Derbyshire
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Proposed accounting approach for the creation of the
new Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
(PCC) and the Chief Constable for Derbyshire (CC)
Introduction
Following the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (The Act), the
Derbyshire Police Authority (DPA) will be replaced on 22 November 2012 with
two ‘corporation sole’ bodies, the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire (PCC) and the Chief Constable for Derbyshire (CC). It is the
Government’s intention that the reforms under the Act will be phased over a
period of several years. The financial statements for 2012/13 will be the first to
show the financial positions of the PCC and PCC Group following the
cessation of the DPA on 21 November 2012.
Basis of transition
The transition is to be accounted for in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice
for Local Authority Accounting 2012/13, which advises that re-organisations of
this nature are business combinations under common control and outside the
scope of IFRS 3 (Business Combinations) and need to be accounted for using
the principles that apply to group reorganisations. Following this approach it is
proposed that the results will be brought into the financial statements of the
new body (PCC) from the beginning of the year that the transfer occurred. In
effect the allocation of costs to the PCC is accounted for as taking place on 1
April 2012 and the financial statements for the PCC and PCC Group covers
the entire 12 months to 31 March 2013. Furthermore in accordance with
CIPFA Code requirements for business combinations no comparative figures
will be provided in the accounts. Financial transactions for the prior year can
be seen in the 2011/12 accounts for the DPA. A summary of the proposed
assets and liabilities to be transferred from the DPA to PCC, which is deemed
to be the successor body is included as Appendix ‘A’.
Accounting principles
The accounting recognition of assets, liabilities and reserves during the first
period of transition, reflects the powers and responsibilities of the CC and
PCC as designated by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011
and the Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police
Service, England and Wales 2012. This accounting treatment is also
underpinned by the relationships as defined by local regulations, local
agreement and practice. On 22 November 2012 the assets, liabilities and
reserves of the DPA will be transferred directly to the PCC and during this first
phase of transition they remain under the PCC’s control. The CC while
fulfilling his functions under the 2011 Act will not hold assets and liabilities and
will not hold reserves inline with the Home Office Financial Management Code
of Practice for the Police Service, England and Wales 2012 and will not
receive direct government funding or revenue from the PCC or from other
sources. Payments will be made by the PCC from the Police Fund and no
1

Appendix A to
AGENDA ITEM 10A
JARAC
13 MARCH 2014

cash movements will occur between the two bodies. The PCC has the
responsibility for managing the financial relationships with third parties and
has legal responsibilities for discharging the contractual terms and conditions
of suppliers. Costs are however recognised within the CC’s accounts to
reflect the financial resources consumed at the request of the PCC and the
economic benefit this brings about. For example an economic benefit is
recognised to reflect the utilisation of the PCC’s owned fixed assets, which
mirrors depreciation of property, plant and equipment, amortisation of
intangible assets and impairment from obsolescence or physical damage. In
practice the CC consumes financial resources against the annual budget for
the discharge of his operational policing responsibilities. The annual budget is
set by the PCC in consultation with the CC. Similarly access will be granted
to PCC staff and assets and a scheme of delegation will be in operation
between the two bodies determining the local arrangements and respective
responsibilities.
During the first phase of transition all the assets, liabilities and reserves of the
Group will be recognised on the PCC’s Balance Sheet and accordingly there
will be no balances within the Balance Sheet for the CC as at 31 March 2013.
Similarly, there will be no transactions recognised on the CC’s Movement of
Reserves Statement and CC’s Cashflow Statement for 2012/13. However,
the financial consequences of the PCC’s resources consumed at the request
of the CC during 2012/13, in pursuance of the CC’s operation responsibilities
under the Act are to be shown in the Operating Cost Statement. The
Operating Cost Statement will show the net cost of policing for the CC. As the
CC will not hold reserves under the Home Office Code, the financial
consequences recognised in the Operating Cost Statement are to be offset by
an intra-group adjustment to reflect the payment of the PCC’s resources
consumed at the request of the CC to give a nil position on the Operating
Cost Statement. In contrast the PCC’s ‘net cost of policing services’ includes
the intra-group adjustment (funding of resources at the request of the CC) in
additional to the cost of administering the PCC’s office itself to show the
overall net cost of policing Derbyshire for 2012/13.
Conclusion
Therefore, as it has been deemed that ‘all’ the assets, liabilities and reserves
are recognised on the PCC’s Balance Sheet, consequently there is a single
Balance Sheet at 31 March 2013 and single Movement in Reserves
Statement and Cash Flow Statement for the year representing both the PCC
and the PCC-Group during this first phase of transition.

2
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Acquisition assets, liabilities and reserves
1 April 2012
£000
£000
Long term assets
Property, plant and equipment
54,811
Intangible assets
878
Total Fixed Assets
Long term debtors
Total Long Term Assets
Current Assets
Inventories
213
Short term debtors
16,211
Short term investments
30,128
Cash and cash equivalents
5,277
Total Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Short term creditors
(15,076)
Short term borrowing
(648)
Provisions
(694)
Short term contractor liability
(465)
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Provisions
(546)
Long term borrowing
(8,106)
Capital grants receipts in
(5)
advance
Long term contractor liability
(13,715)
Police office pension liability
(1,412,284)
Total Long Term Liabilities
Net Assets Transferred

(1,434,656)
(1,344,021)

Net Reserves Transferred

(1,344,021)

55,689
0
55,689

51,829

(16,883)
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Day

Date

Friday

03-Jan

Tuesday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

07-Jan
20-Jan
21-Jan
22-Jan
23-Jan
24-Jan
25-Jan
26-Jan
27-Jan
28-Jan
29-Jan
30-Jan
31-Jan

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

01-Feb
02-Feb
03-Feb
04-Feb
05-Feb
06-Feb
07-Feb
08-Feb
09-Feb
10-Feb
11-Feb
12-Feb
13-Feb
14-Feb
15-Feb
16-Feb
17-Feb
18-Feb
19-Feb
20-Feb
21-Feb
22-Feb
23-Feb

Leave

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Provide GAD with formal Commissioning Letter
Meeting with CW to go over closedown dates & tidying ledger for year end eg outstanding crs,drs and aged
registrations

PS/JC

Review year end timetable
Set up proforma accounts based on old year.
Set up proforma accounts based on old year.
List of aged orders to be sent out to check if any need closing

JB
JB
JB
MC

Finance & Business Services Briefing - Year End

KF,JB

Written Instructions issued to users re year end procedures

JB

Review Code of Practice for new requirements
Meeting with Strategic Finance re Final Accounts Timetable
Meeting with External Auditors to discuss Final Accounts

JB
Strat Finance
DF/JB/KF

Finance Support to review old registrations to clear by 11 March
Meeting with Business Support to discuss year end
Email to IS re asset disposals - deadline for return 21st March
Finance Support to review debtor invoices for write off - deadline for return 11 March (discussed on 18/02)
Deadline for DCC IAS19 information

Fin Supp
DF,JB,CW,EH
JB
CW
PS/KF

JAB/CW

PS

PS

KF

DF
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Day

Date

Leave

Task/Comment

KF

Interim Audit for 2 weeks. Closing down timetable issued to External Auditors.
Written request sent to Finance (CW) & Divisions & CTIU for Petty Cash Imprest Account Reconciliations and a request
to bank income on 31 March
Send out emails re leases and embedded arrangements to IS, Assets Team and Procurement.
Emails Assets Team (SS) re new leases or terminated leases in 2013/14
Written request sent to Business Services Support (SP) and Legal for Vehicle and Liability Insurance Claims deadline 4
April

Monday

24-Feb

Tuesday

25-Feb

Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday

26-Feb
PS
27-Feb
Balance all reconciliation accounts in anticipation of year end (eg collection accounts, 0325, salaries Interims etc)
Written request to Lampton Smith Hamptons and Head of Assets about assets to be valued and impairments
28-Feb
01-Mar
02-Mar
03-Mar
JB
Deadline for report on Accounting Policies for JARAC on 13 March
04-Mar
JB
Email to Phil Marsden re TOIL, Annual Leave for Police Officers and Staff on DMS system as at 31/03/14
05-Mar
JB
06-Mar
JB
Email to District/Borough Councils re Accounting for Council Tax
07-Mar JB/DF
08-Mar
09-Mar
10-Mar
PS Send out email re CDC % to staff deadline 11 April
Email to Assets Team (TH) re reports from Vehicle Management System re purchases and disposals up to 31/03/14.
Deadline 11 April 2014.
11-Mar PS/KF KPMG Final Accounts Workshop Nottingham
12-Mar
PS Email Business Services (Sarah Pearson) re deadlines (17 April) for Fuel
Email Finance Support (CW) re deadlines (17 April) for Barclaycard
Email Finance Support (CW) re deadlines (17 April) for POCA information
13-Mar
PS JARAC
14-Mar PS/DF Action Debtor Write offs (JB) and credit notes (MB)
Write off of Stock in Agresso and ensure all products are classed as non stocked
15-Mar
16-Mar
17-Mar
DF Remind DCC to send debt charges and early retirement invoices before 31 March 2014
Live Upgrade to Agresso System - system will be down for 3 days??
18-Mar
KF
19-Mar
Review out of date cheques and write-off actioned by 28 March.
20-Mar
Last day for virement requests from Divisions/Departments to be actioned by 28 March.
21-Mar
Deadline for Divisional Petty Cash to be received by Finance Support
Deadline for Divisions/Departments to send any invoices they might receive to Finance Support

Tuesday
Wednesday

Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
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Responsible Task Complete
Ext Audit
JB/KF
JB
JB
JC
MC/LS/JC/FS
DF/JB

DF
KF
PS

KF
FS
JB
JPJ
JPJ
JC
JB/MB
SL/EH

FS/PS

JC
Strat Finance
Divisions/Fin Supp
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Day

Date

Saturday
Sunday
Monday

22-Mar
23-Mar
24-Mar

Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday

25-Mar
26-Mar
27-Mar
28-Mar
29-Mar
30-Mar
31-Mar

Tuesday

01-Apr

Wednesday

02-Apr

Thursday
Friday

03-Apr
04-Apr

Saturday
Sunday
Monday

05-Apr
06-Apr
07-Apr

Tuesday

08-Apr

Leave

DF

DF
DF
DF
DF

KF

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

CIPFA FAN Final Accounts Event Birmingham

JB/KF

Email to Leicestershire/Business Support re salaries over £45,000 and P11D information.
Email Finance Support (CW), Divisions and CTIU to remind about banking on 31 March 2014
Last day for debtor invoice details to reach Finance Support for input deadline 31 March 2014
Cheque/BACS run to pick up most invoices
Email Assets Team re assets held for sale and impairments
Email to Sheila Sismey re Derby PFI CCR's

JB
JB
Fin Supp
JB
PS

Income (cash receipts) to be banked. Divisions to send Statement of Receipts and Banking slip to Fin Supp
Cash Receipts to be registered in Agresso for HQ and Divisions.
Debtor invoices to be input.
All handdrawn cheques to be posted (Manual Payments)
Last Cheque/BACS run for 2013/14 and Petty Cash.
Period/Year end routines and Agresso system default period changed to 201401.
Run report of invoices registered but not approved (posted) plus other year end reports
Open Purchase Orders as at 31 March carried forward to 201401
Police Officer/staff TOIL,RDIL, Flexi and Annual Leave to be obtained from HR system (DMS Staff only)
Check all Cash Receipts input
Strategic Finance can input Year End Journals from this date to 02 May 2014
Auditors to request third-party verifications for bank balances. FS to send letters for investments as at 31 March 2014 to
be returned to auditors- schedule to be sent to Auditors
Income banked (Manual Credits and Debits) up to 31 March 2014 posted within Agresso. Manual Receipts to be posted
(MB).
Reconcilation of Account code 0325 - debtors income
Final Bank Reconciliation for 2013/14 completed. Save copy in excel (closedown folder)
Finance Support to send overtime submission to Strategic Finance
Deadline for vehicle and legal claims information
Send Information to LSH re capital spend

Div / Fin Supp
Fin Supp
Fin Supp
Fin Supp
Fin Supp
MC/JPJ/JB
JB
MC/JPJ/LS
KF
JB
Strat Fin

Email PFI provider about lifecycle expenditure - capital/revenue
Email to Chief offIcers and Office of PCC re related party transactions
Email to Force Solicitor, Director of Finance and Office of PCC re contingent liabilities
Deadline for Divisions/Departments to send any debtor invoices requests (Form 232) to Finance Support
Emails sent to Force Managers re force assets as at 31/03/2014 due back 17 April

JB
KF
KF
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FS/Auditors
Fin Supp
FS
JC
Fin Supp
Bus Ser/Legal
JB

JB
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Day

Date

Leave

Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

09-Apr
10-Apr
11-Apr

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

12-Apr
13-Apr
14-Apr
15-Apr

KF

Wednesday
Thursday

16-Apr
17-Apr

PS

Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

18-Apr
19-Apr
20-Apr
21-Apr
22-Apr

Wednesday
Thursday

23-Apr
24-Apr

Friday

25-Apr

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

26-Apr
27-Apr
28-Apr
29-Apr
30-Apr
01-May
02-May

JB

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Overtime and 10% allowance submission to Mouchel
Check with Director of Finance any changes to Chief Officer scheme
Last Day for '2013/14' debtor invoices to be input in Agresso
Deadline for CDC% information
Deadline for Petty Cash Reconciliation Information
Send out Bad Debt Provision information to Fin Support (CW) deadline for return 25 April

JPJ
KF
Fin Supp
KF
Fin/Bus Supp/KF
JB/CW

Additional Cashflow data and membership summary information to be sumitted to GAD
Balance System Debtors and Creditors and summarise in different formats
Send email out re Grants to be checked for conditions
Run report of invoices posted in 2014/15 to check which need accrueing into 2013/14. Send out to Strategic Finance
Download Year End PWLB Information from internet
Reconcile POCA to Finance Support records and post journals
Deadline for Fuel recharges
Deadline for Barclaycard Expenditure spreadsheet to be received for March transactions
Send email to Claire for information on Police Property Fund Balances as at 31/03/14

PS/JC
KF
JB
JB/SR
FS
JC/Fin Supp
Bus Supp
Fin Supp
JB/CW

Fuel Charges and Barclaycard Expenditure to be input into Agresso
Finalise system accruals spreadsheet & input into Agresso
Internal Revenue Recharges actioned (Cleaning,additional vehicles etc)
Amounts for Police Officers' &staff overtime/10% allowances in April 2014 payroll posted to period 201313
Amounts for Travel Expenses in April 2014 Police Officer and Police Staff payrolls posted to period 201313
Vehicle Reconciliation to be completed
Information back from DCC IAS19 information
Bad Debt provision deadline

JPJ
JB/SR
SR/MC
JPJ
JPJ
FS
DCC
CW

Final reconciliation of salaries interims

MC/LS

Cancelled cheques (no reissue) relating to old year to be posted
Last journal entries to revenue codes (Final outturn position) by 4pm
Excelerator Reports run for final outturn position

CW
Strat Fin
JPJ/KF
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Day

Date

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday

03-May
04-May
05-May
06-May
07-May

Thursday

08-May

Friday

09-May

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

10-May
11-May
12-May
13-May
14-May
15-May
16-May

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday

17-May
18-May
19-May
20-May
21-May
22-May
23-May
24-May
25-May
26-May
27-May
28-May
29-May

Friday
Saturday

30-May
31-May

Leave

KF

KF

KF

KF

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Check Final Outturn Reports
Capital Accounting 07 May to 23 May
Collaboration Accounting 07 May to 19 May
Review Partnerships re Group accounts
Final outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Final outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Balance Manual Debtors and Creditors and analyse for Debtor/Creditors note Deadline 29 May
Final outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Sponsorship balances in ledger balanced to Sponsorship register

Strat Fin
JB/FS
PS/SL/MC
JB/TW
DF/Strat Fin
DF/Strat Fin
LS
DF/Strat Fin
AC

Final outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Final outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Final outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Final outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Final outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
GAD to send IAS19 Disclosures
Deadline for Accounting for Council Tax Information from Councils
Information required for Chief Officer renumeration note re P11D information

DF/Strat Fin
DF/Strat Fin
DF/Strat Fin
DF/Strat Fin
DF/Strat Fin
GAD
Councils
CW/SL

Information to be sent to region re collabaration Date TBC
Accounting for Council Tax Information posted in ledger
IAS19 figures to be posted in ledger
Final day for Capital journal entries

PS
PS/KF
PS/KF
JB/FS

Last journal entries for contributions to/from Reserves and Balance Sheet (final position)
Last journal entries for contributions to/from Reserves and Balance Sheet (final position)
Last entries for EMSOU/Collaborations
Information for Debtors/Creditors note complete
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet Codes complete

JB/PS
JB/PS
PS/SL/MC
LS
Strat Fin
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Day

Date

Leave

Sunday
Monday

01-Jun
02-Jun

KF

Tuesday
Wednesday

03-Jun
04-Jun

KF
KF

Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

05-Jun
06-Jun
07-Jun
08-Jun
09-Jun
10-Jun
11-Jun
12-Jun
13-Jun

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday

14-Jun
15-Jun
16-Jun
17-Jun
18-Jun
19-Jun
20-Jun
DF
21-Jun
22-Jun
23-Jun
DF
24-Jun
DF
25-Jun
DF
26-Jun
DF
27-Jun
DF
28-Jun
29-Jun
30-Jun DF/KF

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Internal Audit Report required from Auditors on Governance
Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA
Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA
Deadline for Outturn Reports for SGB on 30 June
Prepare Annual Governance Statement - Chief Constable and PCC for Audit Committee (JARAC) on 10 July
Deadline for Annual Debtors report
Deadline for Treasury Management Annual Report
Deadline for Police Property Act Fund Report - information to be sent to HB asap before this date
Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA
Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA

JB/KF/PS/TW
JB/KF/PS/TW
DF/JB
DF/HB
JC/FS
FS/JB
CW/HB
JB/KF/PS/TW
JB/KF/PS/TW

Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA
Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA
Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA
Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA
Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA

JB/KF/PS/TW
JB/KF/PS/TW
JB/KF/PS/TW
JB/KF/PS/TW
JB/KF/PS/TW

Draft Statement of Accounts Finalised including Group Accounts
Draft Statement of Accounts Checked
Draft Statement of Accounts Checked
Changes to Statement of Accounts finalised
Statement of Accounts Completed

JB/KF/PS
TN/DF/HB/PS
TN/DF/HB/PS
JB/PS/KF
JB/PS/KF

Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist

JB/PS/KF/FS
JB/PS/KF/FS
JB/PS/KF/FS
JB/PS/KF/FS
JB/PS/KF/FS

Strategic Governance Board
Treasurer/Director of Finance to sign off Accounts following SGB approval of Outturn

HB/TN
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Day

Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday

Date

01-Jul
02-Jul
03-Jul
04-Jul

Leave

KF
KF
KF
KF

Task/Comment
Set of sign Accounts to be provided to Auditors
Start preparing WGA return deadline 26 July??
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Completion of CO Forms (Deadline 07 July)

05-Jul
06-Jul
07-Jul JB/PS Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
08-Jul
PS Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
09-Jul
PS Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
10-Jul
PS Electronic working papers provided to Auditors prior to Audit
11-Jul
PS Completion of RO Forms
12-Jul
13-Jul
14-Jul
JB
15-Jul
JB
16-Jul
JB
17-Jul
JB
18-Jul
JB
19-Jul
JB
20-Jul
JB
21-Jul JB / PS Accounts open to public inspection - to be notified by Auditor
22-Jul JB / PS Any Grant claims to auditors if need auditing
23-Jul
JB
24-Jul
Summary Accounts to be completed
25-Jul
Whole of Government Accounts to be completed
26-Jul
27-Jul
28-Jul
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
29-Jul
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
30-Jul
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
31-Jul
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
01-Aug
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
02-Aug
03-Aug
04-Aug
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
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Responsible Task Complete
JB
KF/JC
JB/PS/FS
JB/PS/FS
JB/PS/FS
JB/PS/FS
FS/JB

JB/PS/FS
JB/PS/FS
JB/PS/FS
JB
PS

Strat Fin
JB
KF/JC
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Day
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday

Date
05-Aug
06-Aug
07-Aug
08-Aug
09-Aug
10-Aug
11-Aug
12-Aug
13-Aug
14-Aug
15-Aug
16-Aug
17-Aug
18-Aug
19-Aug
20-Aug
21-Aug
22-Aug
23-Aug
24-Aug
25-Aug
26-Aug
27-Aug
28-Aug
29-Aug
30-Aug
31-Aug
01-Sep
02-Sep
03-Sep
04-Sep
05-Sep
06-Sep
07-Sep
08-Sep
09-Sep
10-Sep
11-Sep

Leave

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts

Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts

Section 13 Day - to be notified by Auditor

Audit of 2013/14 Accounts - Dates to be notified by Auditors ???
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts - Dates to be notified by Auditors ???
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts - Dates to be notified by Auditors ???
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts - Dates to be notified by Auditors ???
Audit of 2013/14 Accounts - Dates to be notified by Auditors ???
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Day
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

Date
12-Sep
13-Sep
14-Sep
15-Sep
16-Sep
17-Sep
18-Sep
19-Sep
20-Sep
21-Sep
22-Sep
23-Sep
24-Sep
25-Sep
26-Sep
27-Sep
28-Sep
29-Sep
30-Sep

Leave

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Deadline for Audited SOA for JARAC in September ??? TBC
DF

DF
DF
DF
DF
DF

Any completed Grant Claims to be sent back to grant awarding authority

DF
JARAC - Accounts signed off . Publication of Accounts. JARAC date being looked at to change
Audited WGA sent off
Public notice of closure of audit
Weekend
Bank Holiday
Annual leave
High risk - management attention required
Medium risk - review by management required
Low risk - no action required
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POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER AND GROUP
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Policies
General Principles
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice (the Code)
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended)
and the Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2013/14 (SeRCOP). The
accounting policies contained in the Code apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adapted for the public sector by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis using an historic cost convention,
modified to account for the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets and financial
liabilities.
With the introduction of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 on 22 November
2012 two ‘corporation sole’ bodies, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and the
Chief Constable for Derbyshire were formed. Both bodies are required to prepare separate
Statements of Accounts.
The Financial Statements included here represent the accounts for the Commissioner and also
those for the Group. The financial statements cover the 12 months to 31 March 2014. The term
‘Group’ is used to indicate individual transactions and policies of the Commissioner and Chief
Constable for the year ended 31 March 2014. The identification of the Commissioner as the
holding organisation and the requirement to produce group accounts stems from the powers and
responsibilities of the Commissioner under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below: Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made
and received. Whilst all expenditure is paid for by the Group including the pay costs of police
officers and staff, the actual recognition in the respective Commissioner and Chief Constable
Accounts is based on economic benefit.
Debtors – these are recognised in the accounts when the ordered goods or services have been
delivered or rendered by the Group in the financial year but the income has not yet been received.
Income has only been included in the accounts when it can be realised with reasonable certainty.
Where there is evidence that the Group may not be able to collect all amounts due to it, a provision
for bad debts is established. The provision made is the difference between the current carrying
value of the debt and the amount likely to be collected. These amounts are set on an individual
debtor basis. The provision for bad debts is recognised as a charge to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement for the income that might not be collected.
Creditors – these are recorded where goods or services have been supplied to the Group by 31
March but payment is not made until the following financial year.

PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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Accounting for Local Taxes
The collection of council tax is, in substance, an agency arrangement with the Derbyshire District
Authorities (billing authorities) collecting council tax on behalf of the Commissioner (the Police
Precept).
The council tax income is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis and includes the precept for the year plus a share of Collection Fund surpluses and
deficits from the billing authorities.
The difference between the income reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Reserve shall be
taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The year end Balance Sheet includes the share of year end debtors (arrears and collection fund
surpluses) and creditors (prepayments, overpayments and collection fund deficits).
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting shortterm commitments rather than for investment or other purposes. The following have been classed
as cash and cash equivalents:
•
•
•

Cash on hand.
Cash in bank (Current Account, Call Account and Business Premium Account).
Temporary investments with instant access and no penalties.

Exceptional Items
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately,
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Group’s financial
performance.
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, ie in the current
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events
and conditions on the Group’s position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.
Employee Benefits
The Accounts are prepared in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits. This is a complex
accounting standard but it is based on a simple principle that:
“An organisation should account for employment and post employment benefits when employees
earn them and the authority is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years
into the future”.
PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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IAS 19 applies to all types of employee benefits paid including benefits payable during employment,
termination benefits and post employment benefits.
Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and
non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for
services in the year in which employees render service to the Group. An accrual is made for the
cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg time off in lieu) earned by employees but not
taken before the year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The
accrual is charged to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but then reversed out
through the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Short Term Accumulating Compensated
Absences Account so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the
holiday absence occurs but have no impact on the level of council tax.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Group to terminate
employment before the normal retirement date or a decision to accept voluntary redundancy and
when the Group is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an individual or
group or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Post employment Benefits (Pensions)
The main effect of IAS19 in relation to post employment benefits is the recognition of the net liability
and a pensions reserve in the Balance Sheet and entries in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for movements in the liability relating to the employee pension schemes in
which the Group participates (with reconciling entries in the Movement in Reserves Statement back
to the true cost of pensions for the purposes of grant and local taxation).
IAS19 relies on the recognition of pension’s liabilities (being the retirement benefits promised
measured on an actuarial basis) and assets (being the Group’s share of investments (if any)).
The Group participates in two different pension schemes both of which are “defined benefit
schemes” as they are both based on employees earning benefits from years of service;
a) Police Officers
This scheme is unfunded. This means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police
officers based on final salaries but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions
liabilities.
The funding arrangements for the police officers pension scheme changed on 1 April 2006. Before
April 2006 each Police Authority was responsible for paying the pensions of its former officers on a
“pay as you go” basis. From April 2006 there is now an employer’s contribution instead (currently
24.2% of pensionable salary) which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
The Group is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund Account and the amounts that must
be paid into and paid out of the Pension Fund are specified by regulation. This account is shown on
page **. Officer’s contributions and the employer’s contribution are paid into the pension’s account
from which pension payments are then made. This will be topped up as necessary by the Home
Office if the contributions are insufficient to meet the cost of pension’s payments. Any surplus will
be recouped by the Home Office. Injury awards and ill health retirements will continue to be paid
from the Group’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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The pension fund account does not take account of the obligation to pay pensions and benefits
which fall due after the end of the financial year.
b) Police Staff and PCSO’s
Police staff and PCSO’s, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local
Government Pension Scheme administered by Derbyshire County Council. It is a funded scheme.
Pensions and other retirement benefits, based on final salaries, are paid from the fund. Employers
and employees make regular contributions into the fund so that the liabilities are paid for evenly
over the employment period. Actuarial valuations of the fund are undertaken every three years to
determine the contributions rates needed to meet its liabilities.
For both schemes, the liabilities are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method (An assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates,
employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of projected earnings for current employees).
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate. The Discount Rate
used is based on the ‘current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency
and term to the scheme liabilities’, which is often referred to as AA Corporate Bond Rate.
Assets in the Local Government Pension scheme are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair
value: •
•
•

Quoted and Unitised Securities – Current Bid Price.
Unquoted Securities – Professional Estimate.
Property – Market Value.

The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:
•
•

•
•

•

•
•

Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year –
allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect
relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of non
distributed costs.
Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they
move one year closer to being paid - debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to the
Group, based on an average of the expected long term return – credited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the Group of
liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees –
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of non distributed costs.
Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve.
Contributions paid to the pension fund.

Notes on Pensions are included on pages ** to ** of the accounts.
Discretionary Benefits
PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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The Group also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award.
Events after the Balance Sheet Date
These are events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue. The Group will report these in the following way if it is
determined that the event has had a material effect on the Group’s financial position: •

Events which provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period will
be adjusted and included within the figures in the accounts.

•

Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting will be reported in the
narrative notes to the accounts.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.
Financial Instruments - Liabilities and Assets
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For
most of the borrowings that the Group has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan
agreement.
The Group has not undertaken any repurchasing or early settlement of borrowing.
Financial assets are classified into two types: • Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in
an active market.
• Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or
determinable payments.
The Group only has financial assets based on the first category of loans and receivables.
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at
their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most
of the loans that the Group has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet
is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the
loan agreement.

PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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Government Grants & Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government Grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is reasonable
assurance that: •
•

The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments.
The grants or contributions will be received

Amounts recognised as due to the Group are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution has been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefit or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the
recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the
transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is
credited to the Net Cost of Services (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and
Non-Specific Grant Income (non ringfenced grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Revenue grants are recognised in full in the year of their
receipt. The impact on the General Reserve is negated by a transfer to Earmarked Reserves in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they
are reversed out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where
the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants
Unapplied Reserve. Where it is applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in
the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they
have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
Non-Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition and Measurement
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets is capitalised on an accruals
basis, provided that it yields benefits to the Group and the services it provides for more than one
financial year and that the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following
measurement bases:
•

•

Land, property and other operational assets are included in the Balance Sheet at fair value
(existing use value). Operational assets can either be specialised or non-specialised.
Specialised Assets, where there is no particular market or demand for their specific use, are
valued at Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) as an estimate for fair value. The only assets
to be classified as specialised property relate to the operational custody suites situated within
the various properties. In cases where there is only a small number of cells, or where cells are
now out of use, these have not been treated as specialised properties.
Assets under construction are held in the Balance Sheet at historical cost until completed,
whereupon they will be valued and included in the Balance Sheet as operational assets.
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Where non property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical
cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value eg Vehicles, IT and Communications equipment and
other equipment.
Revaluation
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that
the carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value but as a minimum every five
years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged
to the account.
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: •
•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains)
Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of
its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.
Impairments
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified,
they are accounted for by:
•
•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains).
Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation
that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets
without a determinable finite useful life (ie freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for
use (ie assets under construction). Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis as follows:Operational Buildings

Over the life of the asset (20-50 years) as estimated by the valuer.

Vehicles

Over the life of the asset (3-10 years)

IT/Communications Equipment
Over the life of the asset (5 -10 years) Majority of assets are 5
years.
PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14

7

Appendix C to
AGENDA ITEM 10A
JARAC
13 MARCH 2014

Component Accounting – where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major
components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are
depreciated separately. The component is judged to be significant were the replacement value is
above £0.5m or 25% of the asset. It applies to new expenditure from 2010/11 and any subsequent
revaluations.
It is the Group’s policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is
made in the year of disposal. Depreciation is charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based
on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital
Adjustment Account.
Disposals and Assets held for sale
When a non-current asset is planned to be disposed of, it is reclassified as an Asset held for sale.
To be reclassified it must meet the following criteria: •
•
•
•

The asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such assets.
The sale must be highly probable (with management commitment to sell and active marketing of
the asset initiated).
It must be actively marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair
value.
The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year.

The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less
costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous
losses in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were
classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have
been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the
date of the decision not to sell.
Assets that are abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or
loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of the disposal).
Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be
PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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used to finance new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Group’s underlying need to
borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the
General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is
fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
Non-Current Assets - Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences), are capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Group.
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Group’s goods or services.
Intangible assets are measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the
assets held by the Group can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no
intangible asset held by the Group meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised
cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement over its useful life. Amortisation, as with depreciation, commences in the
financial year following that in which they are received. Amortisation is not permitted to have any
impact on the General Reserve Balance; it is therefore reversed through the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: •
•
•

Depreciation attributable to the assets used.
Revaluation and impairment losses on assets where there are no accumulated gains in the
Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets.

The Group is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to
contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP)). An annual statement for the policy on making MRP is required in accordance with statutory
guidance; this should be calculated on a prudent basis. The policy for Derbyshire is: •
•
•

For Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP Policy will be based on the Capital Financing
Requirement at 4% of the opening balance
For unsupported borrowing the MRP policy will be based on the Asset Life Method, equal
instalment over the life of the asset
For PFI contracts and leases that are deemed to be on Balance Sheet, the MRP requirement
would be regarded as met by a charge equal to the element of the charge that goes to write
down the Balance Sheet liability.

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by
revenue provision in the Movement in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting transaction with
the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between
the two.
PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does
not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Group has determined
to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the
Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Reserve Balance to the Capital Adjustment
Account then reverses out the amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of council tax.
Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, vehicles, plant or equipment from the
lessor (landlord) to the lessee (tenant). All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group has looked at material property leases over £10,000 and for more than 10 years. IAS
17 ‘Leases’ includes indicators for the classification of leases as a finance lease. Material leases
have been judged against these indicators.
a) Finance Leases
i) Lessee – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Group is the lessee will be recognised on the
Balance Sheet at an amount equal to the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease.
The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. This liability is
reduced as lease payments are made. Minimum lease payments are to be apportioned between the
finance charge (interest) and the reduction of the deferred liability.
The finance charge (interest) will be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line).
Finance lease assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same
way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Group. Depreciation to be charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.
ii) Lessor – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Group is the lessor will be recognised on the
Balance Sheet as a debtor at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The lease
payment is treated as repayment of principal and finance income (interest).
Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the debtor and recognised as an
expense over the lease term on the same basis as the income.
Rental income from finance leases entered into after 1 April 2010 should be treated as a capital
receipt.
b) Operating Leases
i) Lessee – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as an operating lease and where the Group is the lessee, the rentals will be
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Charges are made on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease.
ii) Lessor – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment

PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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An asset identified as an operating lease, and where the Group is the lessor, shall be retained in
the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts
The Group has entered into two PFI arrangements, Ilkeston Police Station and D Divisional HQ at
Derby. The first affected the accounts from 1998/99, the second from 2000/01. Both have a
continuing commitment by the Group for 30 years. PFI contracts are agreements to receive
services, where the responsibility for making available the non-current assets needed to provide the
services passes to the PFI contractor. As the Group is deemed to control the services that are
provided under its PFI schemes and has control over the residual interest in the property at the end
of the arrangement, the Group carries the non-current assets under the contracts on the Balance
Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The original recognition of these assets at fair value was balanced by the recognition of a liability for
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investments.
PFI assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as
property, plant and equipment owned by the Group.
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year should be analysed into five elements: •

Fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

•

Finance cost – an interest charge of 9.114% for Ilkeston PFI and 7.917% for Derby PFI on the
outstanding Balance Sheet Liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

•

Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract.
For both the Group’s PFI schemes there is no contingent rent as the property element of the fee
paid to the PFI operator is not indexed.

•

Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI
operator. This is also the MRP charge for PFI schemes.

•

Lifecycle replacement costs – recognised as fixed assets on the Balance Sheet if the costs are
of a capital nature or if the costs are revenue debited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice
2013/14 (SeRCOP). The full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in
proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:
•
•

Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Group’s status as a multi-functional
democratic organisation.
Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early
and impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for Sale.

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing
Services.
PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or
amount. There are three criteria:
•
•
•

The Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event.
It is more likely than not that money will be needed to settle the obligation.
A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
the year that the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at
the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), the income is only recognised as income if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received when the obligation is settled.
Provisions contained within the Balance Sheet are split between current liabilities (those which are
estimated to be settled within the next 12 months) and non-current liabilities (those which are
estimated to be settled in a period greater than 12 months).
Details of provisions held at 31st March 2014 are shown in Note ** to the accounts.
Contingent Liabilities – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.
Contingent Asset – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.
Reserves
Usable Reserves - the Group’s General Revenue Balances are held in the General Reserve to
generally support the budget. The Group also maintains a number of specific ‘earmarked’ reserves
for future expenditure on either policy purposes or to cover contingencies. The intended use of
‘earmarked’ reserves is shown in Note ** to the accounts. Reserves are created by appropriating
amounts out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When
revenue expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General
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Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against
Council Tax for the expenditure.
Also held under usable reserves are those that support the financing of capital (Capital receipts
reserve and Capital Grants unapplied).
Unusable Reserves - certain reserves/accounts are kept to manage the accounting processes for
non- current assets (Capital Adjustment Account, Revaluation Reserve), retirement and employee
benefits (Pensions Reserve, Short term Accumulating Compensated Absences Account) and
Accounting for local taxes (Collection Fund Adjustment Account). These do not represent usable
resources for the Group.
Value Added Tax (VAT)
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement excludes any amounts related to VAT, as
all VAT collected is payable to HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from
them.
Jointly Controlled Operations
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Group in conjunction with other
venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the
establishment of a separate entity. The Group recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it
controls and the liabilities that it incurs and debits and credits the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement with the expenditure its incurs and the share of income it earns from the
activity of the operation.

Accounting standards that have been issued but not yet been adopted
For 2013/14 the new standards that needs to be reported relates to amendments to IFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures offsetting financial assets and liabilities and amendments to IAS
19 Employee Benefits. A note in the accounts discloses information relating to the impact of this
accounting change.

PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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CHIEF CONSTABLE
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Policies
General Principles
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice (the
Code) on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as
amended) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2013/14 (SeRCOP).
The accounting policies contained in the Code apply International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adapted for the public sector by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS).
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis using an historic cost convention,
modified to account for the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets and financial
liabilities.
The Accounting Policies below also reflect the powers and responsibilities of the Chief Constable
as designated by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Home Office
Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police Service, England and Wales 2013. The
Accounting policies defined here are consistent with local regulations, local agreement and
practice as well as the PCC Group policies.
The Accounts cover the 12 months to 31 March 2014.
Cost Recognition
All expenditure is paid for by the Commissioner including the wages of police officers and staff
and no actual cash transactions or events take pace between the two entities. Costs are
however recognised within the Chief Constable’s Accounts to reflect the financial resources
consumed at the request of the Commissioner and the economic benefit this brings about. For
instance an economic benefit is recognised to reflect the utilisation of the Commissioner owned
fixed assets which mirrors depreciation of property, plant and equipment (amortisation in respect
of intangible assets) and impairment from obsolescence or physical damage.
Accruals of Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made: 



Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed.
Expenses in relation to services received (included services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.
Short term compensated absences are recognised in the Operating Cost Statement (OCS) in
the period in which officers or staff render the service which entitles them to the benefit, not
necessarily when they receive the benefit. The cost of leave earned, but not taken at the end
of the financial year is recognised in the financial statements of the Commissioner and the
Chief Constable’s OCS to the extent that staff are entitled to carry forward a limited amount
of leave into the following year.

Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group an obligation that
probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, but where the timing of the
transfer is uncertain. While there are no provisions in the Chief Constable’s OCS, the revenue
charge for provisions are reflected in the Chief Constable’s OCS. Thus payments in the Chief
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Constables OCS are charges to the provisions set up in the Group Balance Sheet. Estimated
provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year. Where it is likely that a provision will
not be required, the relevant amount is reversed in the Chief Constable’s OCS.
Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and
non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees. The financial consequences of these
benefits are recognised in the Chief Constable’s OCS in the year in which the employee renders
service to the Chief Constable. IAS 19 Employee Benefits also requires the Group to account for
short-term compensating absences which include time owing and annual leave accrued by
accruing for the benefits which have accumulated but are untaken by the 31 March 2014.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Chief Constable to
terminate a member of staff’s employment before their normal retirement date or their decision to
accept voluntary redundancy. These are recognised in the Chief Constable’s OCS when the
Chief Constable is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an individual
or group of employees or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Post employment benefits
The Police Pension Scheme (PPS) is a contributory occupational pension scheme (contracted
out from the State earnings Related Pension Scheme), governed by the Police Pension
Regulations 1987 (as amended) and related regulations that are made under the Police
Pensions Act 1976. The 2006 New Police Pension Scheme (NPPS), which started on 1 April
2006, is a contributory occupational pension scheme (contracted out from the State earnings
Related Pension Scheme), governed by the Police Pensions Act 1976 (as amended by the
Police Pension Regulations 2007). Officers make contributions of 24.2% of pensionable pay.
The employees’ contribution is set nationally by the Home Office and is subject to triennial
revaluation. A Pension Fund was set up on 1 April 2006 to administer both schemes.
Police staff and PCSO’s
Police staff and PCSO’s, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local
Government Pension Scheme administered by Derbyshire County Council. It is a funded
scheme. Pensions and other retirement benefits, based on final salaries, are paid from the fund.
Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund so that the liabilities are paid
for evenly over the employment period. Actuarial valuations of the fund are undertaken every
three years to determine the contributions rates needed to meet its liabilities.
Value Added Tax (VAT)
The Chief Constable does not submit a VAT return as the PCC submits a single VAT return on
behalf of the PCC Group. Expenditure in the Chief Constable’s OCS excludes any amounts
relating to VAT as all VAT is remitted to/from HM Revenue and Customs.
Jointly Controlled Operations
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken in conjunction with other venturers that
involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a
separate entity. The Group recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the
liabilities that it incurs. The Chief Constable Accounts include Derbyshire’s share of running
these operations as part of the Operating Cost Statement.
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Events after the date of signing the accounts
When an event occurs after the date of signing the Accounts, which provides evidence of
conditions that existed at that date an adjusting event occurs and the amounts recognised in the
Statement of Accounts of the Group will be adjusted to take into account any values that reflect
the adjusting event and will also be reflected in the Chief Constable’s OCS where appropriate.
Where an event occurs after the signing date that is indicative of conditions that arose after the
date, the amounts recognised in the OCS are not adjusted but disclosed as a separate note to
the Accounts. Events after the signing date are reflected up to the date when the Statement of
Accounts is authorised for issue and published.

Changes in Accounting Estimates
Significant estimates and judgements in applying Accounting Policies
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Chief Constable to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reporting amounts.
Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant
factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be
materially different from the assumptions and estimates.
Material estimates and assumptions are made in the following cases:
•
•

In respect of police staff when estimates are required, the calculation of unused holidays
(e.g. annual leave, flexi leave) is based on a sample of police staff updated for the total
number of police staff at the 31 March.
The level of claims reflected in the Chief Constables Operating Cost Statement is
determined by applying historic experience of past claim to determine the probable
outflow of economic benefits in respect of existing claims.

The Accounting Policies and Changes in Accounting Estimates can sometimes be found as a
note to the Financial Statements.
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Part I For Publication

JOINT, AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 MARCH 2014
REPORT OF THE TREASURER

11A: JARAC MEETING DATES 2014

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

For members of JARAC to consider the proposed meeting dates for the Joint
Audit Risk and Assurance committee until March 2015.

2.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

2.1

Meetings of the JARAC will take place four times per year and will always be
held at Police Headquarters, Ripley. Each meeting will be focussed around
one of the four following themes; (1) Risk Management and Review and
Advice on Internal Controls, (2) Financial Reporting/Final Accounts/Data
Quality and Appraisal, (3) Risk Management, (4) Value for Money and (5)
Audit, which will be an on-going area of scrutiny.

2.2

Members will be required to meet approximately 45 minutes prior to each
formal JARAC meeting for a Members Only Pre-meeting. This meeting
should last approximately 30 minutes.

2.3

Members are asked to consider and agree the most suitable meeting dates
from those proposed below;
JULY – Risk Management and Review and Advice on Internal Controls
15 July - am
16 July - pm
17 July - pm
SEPTEMBER – Financial reporting / Final Accounts /Data Quality and
Appraisal
23 September - am
1
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24 September - am
25 September - am
DECEMBER –Risk Management
11 December - (9.30 – 12.30) CONFIRMED
MARCH – Value for Money
10 March - am
11 March - am
12 March - am
3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

i.

To agree the meeting dates 2014/15

4.

IMPLICATIONS

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained
within the report
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the
author
LOW – no narrative required

LOW
Crime & Disorder

X

Environmental

X

Equality & Diversity

X

Financial

X

Health & Safety

X

Human Rights

X

Legal

X

Personnel

X

MEDIUM
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Contact details

Helen Boffy, Treasurer

in the event

External telephone number: 03001226005

of enquiries

Helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None
ATTACHMENTS
None
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